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Letter to Shareholders

Dear Fellow Shareholders:

Liberty Media Corporation completed the spin-off of Liberty Broadband Corporation, which holds Liberty
Media's former Charter Communications investment, in November of 2014. Through the date of the spin-off,
that Charter investment appreciated by over 65%;a geod outcome in about 18 months. Subsequent to the

spin-off, Charter has continued to reach a steady succession of new highs. Furthermore, we believe there is

much gas [eft in the tank. The factors that have made Charter such a successful investment should continue
to compaund its intrinsic value at attractive rates for the foreseeable future.

Internally, we joked about the risk of writing an annual letter for Liberty Broadband, which could become
quickly out-of-date. As luck would have it, shortly before going to print we find ourselves editing this letter to
reflect the announcement of Charter's proposed acquisition of Bright House Networks, the sixth largest cable
operator in the US, serving approximately 2 million video customers, primarily in Florida, Rewriting a few
paragraphs is a small price to pay for such an attractive transaction.

What is Liberty Broadband?

Liberty Broadband is focused on strategic investments in the US cable industry. Its 26% beneficial ownership
of Charter commen stock constitutes the overwhelming majority of Liberty Broadband's assets, in addition
to a minority equity position in Time Wamer Cable and the TruePosition operating business. Over time, we
expect the performance of Liberty Broadband to largely reflect the value of its underlying assets, although
the relationship to net asset value may fluctuate.

Following the rights offering we completed in January 2015, Liberty Broadband also has over $700 million in
avallable cash. Upon the anticipated completion of Charter's recently announced acquisition of Bright House,
we expect these funds to be invested in Charter commeon stock.

Why are we so excited about Charter?

Charter has numerous attributes that make it uniquely valuable:

«Tom Rutledge and his immensely talented team;

= recently upgraded all-digital network, resulting in both operational efficiencies and industry
leading performance for the end customer;

- exiting the heaviest phase of the investment program for its existing service territory, which
will result in increasing free cash generation (we also believe they will be very rational, investor
friendly allocators of that free cash flow);

« historically underpenetrated service temitory, resulting in significant runway for growth;

«appropriately levered balance sheet, enough to meaningfully enhance equity returns,
but not aggressively so;
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= creation of a far more concentrated and efficient service territory upon the anticipated
closing of the various transactions with Comcast and Time Warner Cable;

« attractive tax attributes that further enhance its cash flow profile; and

+ well-positioned as the go-forward conselidator of choice in the US cable industry.

Further to that last bullet, we believe that additional scale is a functional necessity for smaller US cable operators.
The technolegical demands of developing and deploying each successive generation of video and internet
functionality are immense. When compared to the sheer size of global technology companies such as
Apple, Google and Microsoft, many US cable operators appear small. Two solutions can address this: further
consolidation of smaller cable operators and technological cooperation across the cable industry, Charter
is uniquely situated for both.

What's Next?

As noted above, we are very excited that Charter recently announced an agreement to acquire Bright House,
While the deal is still conditioned on various factors, not the least of which is the completion of Charter's
transactions with Comcast and the Comcast-Time Warner Cable transaction, the Bright House transaction
reinforces our investment opportunity. Charter hammered out a win-win-win, whereby the company will reap
the benefits of additional scale and further optimize its service territary, while counting both Advance/Newhouse
(the parent company of Bright House} and Liberty Broadband as dedicated and value-added shareholders.
We anticipate deploying $700 million of available cash at Liberty Broadband to purchase additional shares of
Charter comman stock as part of this transaction,

In closing, we are excited to see Liberty return to its ancestral roots, the US cable industry. We feel very fortunate
that Liberty Broadband not only identified the “right horse to back” but also had the opportunity to acquire
such a meaningful stake in May 2013. While the regulatory environment in which the US cable industry exists
continues to evolve, we believe the fundamentals of the industry remain extremely favorable.

We look forward to seeing many of you at this year's annual investor meeting, which will take place on
November 12th at the Times Center at 242 West 415t Street in New York City.

We appreciate your ongoing support.

Very truly yours,

G f& C o
Gregory B. Maffei John C. Malone
President and Chief Executive Officer Chairman of the Board

April 2015
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Stock Performance

The following graph compares the percentage change in the cumulative total shareholder return on an
investment in Liberty Broadband Series A and Series C common stock from November 5, 2014 {the day
Liberty Broadband began trading “regular-way " following its spin-off from Liberty Media Corporation)
through December 31, 2014, to the percentage change in the cumulative total return on the S&P 500 Index
and S&P Media Index. Liberty Broadband perfermance includes the impact of the rights offering.

Liberty Broadband Common Stock vs. S&P 500 and Media Indices
11/5/14 te 12/31/14
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(1) Libserty Broadband Series A and C common stock began trading reqular way on 11/5/14.
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Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters of Equity Securities,

Market Information

Chur Senes A and Series O common stock have been outstanding since November 2014, Each series of our common stock
trades on the Nasdag Global Select Market. The following table sets forth the range of high and low sales prices of shares of our
common stock for the vear ended December 31. 2014, for the period they were outstanding.

Liberiy Broadbasd Corporation

Sertet A Series B Serier C
(LERDA) (LERDE) (LERDE)
High Low High Low High Low
2014
Fourth quarter (after November 4, 2014) | 5 55.35 44.63 S0.00 48.00 54.74 42,12

On November 5, 2014, owr Series B common stock became eligible for quotation on the OTC Markets under the symbol
"LBRDB." but it is not actively traded. There can be no assurance that a regular trading marker will develop for our Series B
commen stock or. if such a market is developed. that it will be sustained. Since our Series B common stock began quotation on
the OTC Markets, the range of high and low last reponed prices was $50.00 to $45.00, as repomed by the OTC Markets, The
quotations represent inter-dealer prices without retail mark-ups. mark-downs or commissions, and may not necessarily represent
actual transactions.

Holders

As of February 28, 2015, there were approximately 1,024, 72 and 1.287 holders of our Series A, Series B and Series C
common stock, respectively. The foregoing munbers of record holders do not include the number of stockliolders whose shares
are held nommally by banks, brokerage houses or other nstitutions, but include each such mstitution as one shareholder.

Dividends

We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock. and we have no present intention of so doing. Payment of cash
dividends. if any. in the future will be determined by our board of directors in light of our eamings. financial condition and other
relevant considerations.

Securities Authorized for Isswance Under Equity Compensalion Plans

Information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our definitive proxy statement for our 2015 Annual Meeting
of stocklholders.
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Selected

Financial Data.

The following tables present selected historical information relating to our financial condition and results of operations

far the past five years. The following data should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements.

December 11,

14 P M E] 012 011 (3 2010
Stanmary Balanece Sheet Date:. ... ............ ameunts in thowsands
Cash and cash equivalents . ..........oo0ivnnies s 44,509 9,251 10,031 30,890 31,677
Tnvestments in available for sale securities. ., . ..., § 360,762 326,700 232648 151,581 157,852
Investment in affiliates, accounted for using the

gty IEthOd (2] & o ivvini e s snns e bd salais S 2498804 2,402,024 e e o,
Intangible assets not subject to amortization (1).... $ 27,166 20,669 20,669 20,669 20,669
Intangible assets subject to amortization, net (1) ... § 12915 429 1.562 3.645 5,540
Fotalaempta: & e e S 3003932 2,900,379 315.634 254.784 T719.073
Long-termdeb .. ....ovviinicinmroraniigunse 5 372,000 — — — —
Deferred income tax liabilities, noncwrrent. .. ... .. 5 —_ 24338 43.014 21422 57,330
Total equity [T ) T s SR TR e 5 2.494.769 2779194 196,459 161,128 {440.587)
Years Ended December 31

1014 7013 2012 3011 (3) 010
Summary Statement of Operations Data; ..., ... amaunts in thowsands, except per share amonnts
BEENE . o ey e e b e s A e e e £ 69045 77,363 £3.098 1,136,934 136,186
Operating income (loss) £ (42974 {88) 7.879 640,359 60,048
Share of earnings (losses) of affiliares (2)........ $ (127.573) {76.090) —_ —_ {2.321)

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on financial

PR OOEE, oy st e e Sl e i b3 51189 97.860 57.582 (4.150) 58.019
Gain (loss) on dilution of mvestment in affiliate .. §  (87.158) (92.933) —_— —_— —
MWet eamings (loss) attributable to Liberty

Broadband shareholders . ... . ..... ........... £ (134.605) (41.728) 44,196 607374 62,342
Basic and diluted eamings (loss) per

common share (4. .......oooviiiiiii i 5 (1.52) {0.47) 0.50 6.88 0.71
(1) As discussed in note 2 1o the accompanying consolidated financial statements, TruePosition acquired 100% of the

2

3)

(4)

outstanding conunon shares of Skyhook, a Delaware carporation, on February 14, 2014 for approximately $57.5 million
n eash.

As discussed in note 6 10 the accompanying consolidated financial statements, in May 2013, Liberty acquired
approximately 26.9 million shares of common stock and approximately 1.1 million warrants i Charter for
approximately $2.6 billion, which represented an approximate 27% beneficial ownership in Charter ar the time of
purchase.

In 2011 TruePositon recogmized $1.014 million of previously deferred revenue and $405 million of deferred costs
assoctated with two separale contracts.

The Company issued 85,761,332 conunon shares, which is the aggregate munber of shares of Series A, Series B and
Sertes C commen stock outstanding upon the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off on November 4, 2014. Additionally,
Liberty Broadband distributed subseription rights, which were priced at a discount to the market value, to all holders of
Liberty Broadband common stock as of the rights record date. Because of the discount, the nghts offering is considered
a stock dividend which requires retroactive treatment for prior periods for the weighted average shares owtstanding based
on a factor determined by the fair value per share immediately prior to the nghts exercise and the theoretical fair value
affter the rights exercise, The number of shares issued wpon completion of the Broadband Spin-Off, adjusted for the rights
factor, was used to determine both basic and diluted eamings (loss) per share for the years ended December 31,



2013 and 2012 and for the period from January 1., 2014 through the date of the Broadband Spin-Off. as no Company
equity awards were outstanding prior 1o the Broadband Spum-Off. Basic eamings (loss) per share subsequent to the
Broadband Spin-Off was computed using the weighted average number of shares owtstanding (*'WASO™) from the date
of the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off through December 31, 2014, adjusted for the rights factor, Diluted eamings
per share subsequent to the Broadband Spin-Off was computed using the WASO from the date of the completion of the
Broadband Spin-Off through December 31, 2014, adjusted for the rights factor and potentially dilwtive equity awards
outstanding during the same period.
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Management's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis provides information concerning our results of operations and financial condition.
This discussion should be read in conjunction with our accompanying consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto.

Cverview

During May 2014, the board of directors of Liberty Media Corporation and its subsidiaries (~Liberty,” formerly named
Liberty Spinco, Inc.) authorized mapagement to pursue a plan to spin-off to its stockholders common stock of a wholly-owned
subsidiary. Liberty Broadband Corporation (“Liberty Broadband™), and to distribute subscription rights to acquire shares of
Liberty Broadband’s common stock (the *Broadband Spin-Off"). At 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on November 4, 2014, the
Broadband Spin-Off was completed and shares of Liberty Broadband common stock were distributed to the shareholders of
Liberty as of a record date of 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on October 29, 2014. Liberty Broadband is comprised of. among
other things, (i) Liberty's former interest in Charmer Communications, Ine. (“Charter™), (i) Liberty’s former wholly-owned
subsidiary TruePosition, Inc. (*TruePosition™), (i1} Liberty’s former nunonty equity investment i Time Wamer Cable, Inc.
(“Time Warner Cable™), (iv) cerain deferred tax Labilities. as well as liabilities related to the Tune Wamer Cable written call
options and (v) mitial indebtedness, pursuant to margin loans entered into prior to the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off,
The Broadband Spin-Off was accounted for at historical cost due to the pro rata nature of the distnbution to holders of Liberty
commeon stock.

In the Broadband Spin-Off. record holders of Liberty Series A, Series B and Series C common stock received one-fourth
of a share of the corresponding series of Liberty Broadband comumon stock for each share of Liberty common stock held by them
as of 5:00 p.m., New York City time on October 29, 2014 (the record date) for the Broadband Spin-Off, with cash paid in lien of
fractional shares. In addition, following the completion of the Breadband Spin-Off, on December 10, 2014, stockholders received
a subscription right to acquire one share of Series C Liberty Broadband common stock for every five shares of Liberty Broadband
common stock they held as of 5:00 p.m., New York City time. on December 4, 2014 (the rights record date) at a per share
subscription price of $40,36, which was a 20% discount 1o the 20-trading day volume weighted average wrading price of the Series
C Liberty Broadband common stock following the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off. The riglts offering was fully
subseribed on January 9, 2015, with 17,277.224 shares of Series C conumon stock issued to those rightsholders exercising basie
and, as applicable, oversubscription privileges. The Broadband Spin-Off and nghts offering are mtended 1o be tax-free to
stockliolders of Liberty. The subscription rights were issued to raise capital for general corporate prrposes of Liberty Broadband.

The financial information represents a combination of the historical financial information of TruePosition, Liberty
Broadband's interest in Charter. Liberty"s minority equity investment in Tume Wamer Cable and certain deferred tax liabilities,
as well as linbilities related to the Time Wamer Cable written call options. This financial information refers to the combination

of the aforementioned subsidiary. investments, and financial instruments, as “Liberty Broadband,” “the Company.” “us.” “we”
and “our™ here and m the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Strategies and Challenges
tive (I
Our results prior to May 2013 were largely dependent on the operating performance of TruePosition, In 2013 and future
periods. results for Liberty Broadband will be largely dependent wpon the operating performance of Charter. Therefore. the

executive summary below contains the strategies and challenges of TruePosition and Charter.

TruePosition was incorporated on November 24, 1992, TruePosition develops and markets rechnology for locating
wireless phones and other wireless devices on a cellular network, enabling wireless camers and government agencies to provide

F-d



public safety E-9-1-1 services domestically and services in support of national security and law enforcement worldwide. “E-9-1-
1" or “Enhanced 9-1-1" refers to a FCC mandate requirng wireless carriers to implement wireless location capabality.
TruePosition's location system is a passive nerwork overlay system designed to enable mobile wireless service providers to
derermine the location of all nerwork wireless devices, including cellular and PCS telephones. Using its patented U-TDOA and
other technologies, TruePosition’s location system calculates the latinede and longitude of a designated wireless telephone or
transmitter and forwards the information in real time to application software. TruePosition's offerings cover major wireless air
interfaces,

On February 14, 2014, TruePosition completed the acquisition of Skvhook, Skyhook operates a global location nerwork
with more than 1 million geocoded access points, providing hybrid wireless positioning technology and contextual location
intelligence solutions worldwide, The large amount of data collected by Skvhook powers all of its products, providing Skyhook
the ability to offer location and geo-informed context to any mobile app or device. Skvhook's location-based context solutions
provide a way for companies and agencies to understand consumers' mobile behavior and improve mobile customer experience,
while also allowing advertisers to reach their audiences in new and relevant ways. The FCC recently passed certain indoor
accuracy standards for E=9-1-1 services that TrucPosition believes its services would meet or exceed which could provide further
oppormnity for work with wireless carriers in the funre,

Charter is one of the largest providers of cable services in the United States with approximately 6.2 million residential
and commercial customers at December 312014, offering a vartety of entertainment, information and commmications solutions
to residential and reial 5, including traditional cable video programumiang. Intemet services, and voice services, as
well as advanced video services such as OnDemandTM, HD television and DVR. service. Charter also sells local advertising on
cable nerworks and provides fiber conmectivity to cellular towers. Its infrastruciure consists of a hybrid of fiber and coaxial cable
plant with approximately 129 million estimated passings, with 97% at 550 MHz or greater and 98% of plant miles two-way
active and 99%% of plont all-digital. A national IP infrastructure interconnects Chanter markets. Liberty acquired its interest in
Charter on May 1. 2013, At December 31, 2014, Liberty Broadband owned approximately 28,8 million shares of Charter common
stock, répresenting an approximate 26% ownership interest in the issued and outstanding shares. Under the Charter Stockholders
Agreement. Liberty has the right to nominate four directors to the Charter board of directors. subject to certain exclusions and
requirements. Liberty Broadband also has the nght to cause one of its nominees to serve on the nominating and corporate
governance. audit and compensation and benefits committees of the board, provided they meet the independence and other
qualifications for membership on those committees. These rights were transferred from Liberty to Liberty Broadband in
connection with the Broadband Spin-Off.

Key Dnivers of Revenue

TruePosition eans revenue from the sale of hardware and licensing of software requured to generate location records for
wireless phones and other wireless devices on a cellular network and from the design, installation, testing and conumissioning of
stich hardware and software. In addition, TruePosition eams software mamtenance revenue through the provision of ongoing
technical and software support. Through its Skyhook subsidiary. TruePosition eams revemue from device manufacturers,
application providers and advertising networks by licensing access to Skyvhook’s location and geo-informed context network.

Charter revenue is denved principally from the monthly fees customers pay for the residential and commercial video,
Internet and voice services provided. Charter also eams revenue from one-fime installation fees and advertising sales, Charter
expects to continue lo grow revenue by increasing the number of products in the company s current customer homes and obtaining
new customers with an improved value offering. In addition, Charter expects to increase revenue by expanding the sales of
services to its commercial customers,



Curvent Trends Affecting Our Busingss

TruePosition’s location system competes against a number of other satellite and terreswial based location technology
offerings. In addition, there are a number of new location fechnologies in develop which may further increase competition
to be a location solution for new air interfaces to provide commercial location based services and to meet more stringent
commercial and governmental accuracy standards. Other large technology companies, such as Google. similarly facilitate the
provision of location information to devices and applications operating on their mobile platforms,

Charter faces competition for both residential and comumercial customers in the areas of price, service offerings, and
service reliability. With respect to its residential business. Chaner competes with other providers of video, high-speed Interner
access, telephone services, and other sources of home entertainment. With respect to its commercial business, Charter competes
with other providers of video, high-speed Internet access and related value-added services, fiber solutions, business telephony,
and Ethemet services. In the broadband communications industry, Charter’s principal competitors for video services are DBS and
telephone companies that offer video services, Charter’s principal competitors for high-speed Intemet services are the broadband
services provided by telephone companies, including both traditional DSL, fiber-to-the-node, and fiber-to-the-home offerings.
Charter’s principal competitors for telephone services are established telephone companies, other telephone service providers.
and other camiers, including VoIP providers. At this time, Charter does not consider other traditional cable operators to be
significant conrpetitors in the overall market, as overbwlds are infrequent and geographically spotty {although in any particular
market. a cable operator overbuilder would likely be a significant competitor at the local level). Charter could. however, face
additional competition from multi-channel video providers if they began distributing video over the Internet to customers residing
outside their current temitories,

TruePosition and Charter must stay abreast of rapidly evolving techuological developments and offerings to remain
competitive and increase the unlity of their products and services. These companies must be able o mcorporate new technologies
into their products and services m order to address the needs of their customers.

Results of Operations—Consolidated

Consolidated operating results:
Years ended December 31
014 2013 012
amatants in thowsands
BOWEIIE L 1 vvv s mn s ramnsvnmransaraass amr s ars e na st § 69045 77.363 §3.098
Operating expenses, excluding stock-based compensation
Cost of goods sold 820 15,993 20,358

Operaling expeise 6,670 7449 9223
Selling, general and admunistrative. . AG.946 33317 25 881
Research and development . ....... 18.311 15.314 16.301
Adjusted OIBDA . L L. i i i e e e (3,711) 5.290 11,335
Srock-based compensation .. ......oooiiiiiiiiaa e i s 999 996 (2.383)
Depreciation and amortization . ., 9.043 4,382 5.839
Gamm on legal settlement ... ... {6.000) — _
Tmpairment of intangible assets ., ... T e o e BN W 35,221 —_ —
Operating income (os8) - .. covuviviiniaiisianiniaranieiasssssinsies S (42.974) {88) 7.879

Revenne

Revenue decreased $8.3 million and $5.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, as
compared to the corresponding prior year periods. The decrease in 2014 is primarily due to reduced domestic hardware and
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software license sales. due to the uncertainty around recently issued FOC indoor accuracy mandates, Due to the uncertainty many
wireless camier companies delaved mvestments in location technologies. Additionally, TruePosition experienced reduced
hardware and software license sales in the international markets which was partially offset by Skyhook revenue subsequent to its
acquisition m early 2014, In mid November 2014, Skyhook was notified that one of its significant customers is not expected to
renew its contract for 2015. As a result. it is expected that approximately 30-40% of Skyhook’s revenue will not be recurring for
2015. The decrease in revenue during 2013 was primanily due to reduced hardware and software license sales of $2.9 million and
reduced services revenue of $2.5 million. Sales of hardware and services to existing customers with installed networks can vary
from year to vear as such sales are dependent on any expansion or maintenance of the networks.

Adjusted OIBDA

We define Adjusted OIBDA as revenue less operating expenses and selling. general and administrative expenses
(excluding stock compensation). Our chief operating decision maker and management team use this measure of performance m
conjunction with other measures to evaluate our businesses and make decisions about allocating resources among our businesses.
We believe this is an important indicator of the operational strength and performance of our businesses, including each business’s
ability to service debt and fund capital expenditures, In addition, this measure allows us to view operating results, perform
analytical compansons and benchmarking between businesses and identify strategies to improve performance, This measure of
performance excludes such costs as depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation, separately reported litigation
settlements and restructuring and impaiment charges that are included m the measurement of operating income pursuant to
GAAP. Accordingly, Adjusted OIBDA should be considered in addition 10, but not as a substitate for, operating inconte, net
income. cash flow provided by operating activities and other measures of financial performance prepared in accordance with
GAAP See note 15 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for a reconciliation of Adjusted OIBDA to Eamings
(loss) from continuting operations before income taxes.

Adjusted OIBDA decreased $9.0 million and $6.0 million in the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
as compared to the corresponding prior year periods. The decrease in Adjusted OIBDA during 2014 was primarily a result of
increased legal expenses, cost of the Skyhook acquisition and Skyhook generating negative Adjusted OIBDA, partially offset by
the full year impacr of cost reduction measures nndertaken i 2013, The reduction in overall revenue, discussed above, of $8.3
million was offset by lower cost of goods sold of $15.2 million, primarily due to reduced intermational sales, which have lower
margins than domestic sales. During 2013 TruePosition entered mto an international project for wlich revenue was only
recogmized 1o the extent cash was received, as future collectability of revenue was wasure. Therefore, the gross margin on that
particular project was dependent on the pavments received from the customer. This project has been canceled as of the end of
2013 and therefore there is less revenue and cost of goods sold for the vear ended December 31, 2014. The decrease in Adjusted
OIBDA in 2013 was primarily due to lower revenue, increased legal expenses and the cost of the Skyhook acquisition partially
offset by lower cost of goods sold and the impacts of cost reduction initiatives. During 2013 TruePosition entered into an
international preject for which revenue was only recognized to the extent cash was received. as future collectability was unsure.
Gross margins on this particular project were inpacted negatively throughout the year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease
in ¢cost of goods sold during 2013 is primarily the result of an $11.2 million inventory obsolescence adjustment recorded in 2012,

Legal expenses increased 53,8 million and $3.7 million in the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively,
as compared to the prior vears, The increase in legal costs during 2014 and 2013 is primarily a result of TruePosition's antitrust
lawsuit ansing from the standard setting processes for LTE wireless data communication technology as 1t pertains to location
technology. Legal expenses are mcluded in selling. general and admimistrative expenses. Additionally. approximately $3 million
of lobbying costs were incurred during each of the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 related to the indoor accuracy
regulations described above, Lobbying expenses are also included in selling. general and administrative expenses. These costs
are not anticipated to continue significantly beyend the first quarter of 2015 based on potential rulemaking timelines.



Merger costs of $958 thousand and $624 thousand related to the Skyhook acquisition were incwrred in 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Merger costs are included in selling, general and administrative costs.

Operating expenses, research and development. and selling. general and administrative. excluding legal expenses and
merger costs, discussed above. inereased by $9.7 million and decreased by $4.7 million in the years ended Diecember 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively. as compared to the corrésponding prior year periods. The increase in the current year was primarily due
to operating and selling, general and administrative expenses related to Skyvhook of $13.5 million against revenue of $5.4 million
for the vear ended December 31, 2014, The decrease in 2013 was primarily the result of the Company’s implementation of cost
reduction initiatives, including personne] and contractor headcount reductions and curtailment of other expenses.

Operating Income (Loss)

Operating income decreased $42.9 million and $8.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, as compared to the corresponding prior vear periods. In addition to those items impacting Adjusted OIBDA,
operating meome (loss) for the vear ended December 31, 2014 was further impacted by an increase in depreciation and
amortization of $4.7 million and a $35.2 million impairment of goodwill and intangible assets, partially offset by a $6.0 million
favorable legal settlement of the antitrust lawsuit in July 2014. In addition to those tems impacting Adjusted OIBDA. operating
income (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2013 was further impacted by an increase in stock-based compensation of
£3.4 mullion partially offser by a decrease in depreciation and amortization of $1.5 million as compared to the same period in
2012,

Stock-based compensation expense increased $3 thousand and $3.4 million for the vears ended December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively. The increase in 2013 1s primarily a result of a significant reduction in the estimated fair value of TruePosition
durang 2012, The decrease in the estimated fair value of TruePosition was driven, in part. by the determination of one of Skyhook’s
WO major custouiers’ not 1o renew its contract and general uncertainty about the domestic market.

Depreciation and amortization increased by 54.7 million and decreased 1.5 million for the years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively, as compared to the corresponding prior year periods. The increase n 2014 was due to the acquisition
of Skyheok during the year, and the decrease in 2013 was the result of certain assets becoming fully amortized.

As discussed above, Skyhook was notified that one of its significant customers was not expected to renew its contract
for 2015. As a result, approximately 30-40% of Skyhook’s revenue will not be recurmng for 201 5. Due to this anticipated decline
in Skyhook's operations, the Company performed a Step 2 impairment test to determine the fair value of Skyhook and recorded
a $35.2 million mupairment loss related to TruePosition’s goodwill and intangible assets related to Skyhook during December
2014. See note 7 in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional discussion regarding this impairment loss.
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Other Income and Expense
Components of Other Income (Expense) are presented in the table below.

Years ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
amaunts in thowsands

Orther income (expense):
INbErest SRPENEE. . .o s v deia e e sl b e 5 (1.138) — —
Dividend and interest income . . . 5426 6,878 5415
Share of eamings (losses) of affiliates (127.573)  (76.090) —_
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on financial

MESTIUETIS, TIBL ..o ve v e e res et nnanas 51,189 97,860  57.582
Gain (loss) on dilution of investment in affiliate ... .. ...... (87.158) (92,933) —_
O D s 3 i S W R G (63) (53) (117)

S(159.317) (64.338) 62.880

Interest expense

Tnterest expense during the year ended December 31, 2014 is anributable to two margin loans entered into with each of
the lenders party thereto by BroadbandSPV on October 30, 2014, in connection with and prior to the effectiveness of the
Broadband Spin-Off. See note 8 in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional information on the margin
loan agresments.

Dividend and interest mcome

Dividend and interest income decreased $1.5 million and mcreased $1.5 million for each of the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. as compared to the corresponding prior vear periods. Although the Time Warner
Cable dividend rate mcreased from $0.65 per share per quarter in 2013 1o $0.75 per share per quarter in 2014, interest and dividend
income decreased in 2014 due to contractual commitments on the Time Wamer Cable shares, as a portion of the dividends were
passed through to the counterparty in 2014 based on the written call option contraces on Time Wamer Cable shares. The increase
in 2013 was primarily due to increasing dividend rates paid on Time Wamer Cable shares from $0.56 per share in 2012 to $0.65
per share in 2003,

Share of earnings {losses) af affiliares

Share of losses from affiliates mereased $51.5 million and $76.1 million during the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively, as compared to the corvesponding prior vear periods. Share of losses from affiliates is attributable to the
Company’s ownership interest in Charter. In May 2013, the Company acquired approximately 269 million shares of common
stock and approximately 1.1 million warrants in Charter for approximately $2.6 billion, which represented an approximate 27%
beneficial ownership (including the warrants on an as if converted basis) in Charter at the time of purchase. Upon acquisition, the
Company allocated the excess basis, between the book basis of Charter and fair value of the shares acquired. and ascnbed
rentaining useful lives of 7 vears and 13 vears to property and equipment and customer relationships, respectively. and indefinite
lives to franchise fees, rademarks and goodwill. Outstanding debt is amortized over the contractual period using the effective
interest rate method. Amortization related to delv and intangible assets with identifiable useful lives is included in the Company's
share of eamings (losses) from affiliates line iem in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and aggregated
S81.2 million and $44.3 million. net of related taxes. for the years ended December 31. 2014 and 2013, respectively. See note 6
in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements for additional discussion of the Company’s investment in
Charter.



The following is a discussion of Charter’s stand alone results of operations. In order to provide a berter understanding
of Charter’s operations, we bave included a sununarized presentation of Charter s results from operations., Charter is a separate
publicly raded company and additionnal information about Charter can be obiained through its website and public filings. The
amounts meluded in the table below represent Charter's results for each of the vears ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
However, the portion of Charter’s share of earnings (losses) included in the consolidated financial statements of Broadband only
includes Charter's results from the time of acquisition (May 2013) through December 31, 2014,

Years endeld December 31,
2014 FITE] 2012

amounts in millions

PRI .o -y oon et o o omnrn g e S mns  ma S S 9108 8,155 7.504
Operating expenses, excluding stock-based compensation ........ (5.980) (5.344) (4.825)
idieted QIR o o el el sk b e iminm s dil 3128 2,811 2,679
Depreciation and amortization (2.102)  (1,854) (1.713)
Stock-based compensation ... ..o euieiania (55) {48) (50)
16 TR e R R R P P R TAPR L R B a7l 909 916
OADET ERDEOEAE, DB ... v o im0 i (918} (958) (963)
Net loss before income taxes 53 (49) (47)
IaicONINE TR OCPMEIRRE |, & 5 v i i mmcm , m m  n R A (236) (1207 {257)
TR 1 e s e e N B R $ (183}  (169)  {(304)

Charter had net losses of approximately $1832 million, $169 million and $304 million for the vears ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Charter’s revenue increased 3953 million and $651 million during the vears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, as compared to the corresponding prior years, Revenue growth primanily reflects increases in the munber of
residential Internet and wiple play customers and in commercial business customers, growth in expanded basic and digital
penetration, promotional and annual rate increases, and higher advanced services penetration, partially offset by a decrease in
basic video customers. Charter’s acquisition of Bresnan on July 1. 2013 also increased revenue by approximately $276 million
for the year ended December 31, 2014 and approximately $270 nullion in 2013 as compared to 2012,

The increase in revenus during 2014 was pamally offser by the net impact of a $636 million increase in operating
expenses, a $248 million inerease i depreciation and amortization expense, a 37 nullion merease in stock-based compensation
expense, a $40 million decrease in other expenses and a $116 million increase in income tax expense. The increase in operating
expenses 15 primanly atimbutable to a full year of costs associated with Charter s acquisition of Bresnan on July 1. 2013, increases
in programuning costs as a result of annual contractual rate adjustments, including increases in amounts paid for retransmission
consents and for new programuming, offset in part by video customer losses. Transition costs related to transactions with Comcast
accounted for $14 million of total 2014 operating costs, The increase in depreciation expense is primanly attributable to the
acquisition of Bresnan and depreciation on recent capital expenditures, partially offset by cenain assets becoming fully
depreciated. The decrease in other expenses is primanly attnbutable to a $123 million loss on extinguishanent of debt that was
recognized during the year ended December 31, 2013, Income tax expense for the vear ended December 31. 2013 mnecluded a
step-up in basis of indefinite-lived assets for tax, but not GAAP purposes, resulting from the effects of partnership gains related
to financing transactions, which decreased Clarter’s net deferved tax liabiliry related ro indefinite-lived assets resulting in a benefit
of 67 million.

The increase in revenue during 2013 was partially offset by the net impact of a $519 million increase in operating
expenses, a $141 million mcrease in depreciation and amortization expense. a 52 million decrease in stock-based compensation
expense. a $5 million merease in other expenses and a decrease in income rax expense of 5137 million. The increase in operating
expense is primarily attributable to the acquisition of Bresnan, higher spending on labor to deliver improved products and service
levels, and an increase in progranuning ¢osts as a result of annnal contracial rate adjustments, including increases in amounts



paid for retransmission consents and for new programming. offset in par by video customer losses. The increase in depreciation
expense is primarily anributable to the acquisition of Bresnan and depreciation on recent capital expenditures, partially offser by
certain assets becoming full depreciated. Income tax expense decreased during 2013, primarily as a result of step-ups in basis of
indefinite-lived assets for tax, but not GAAP purposes, as discussed above,

Realized and wnrealized gains losses) on_financial instruments. net

Realized and unrealized gains on financial instruments, nét decreased $46.7 million and increased $40.3 million for each
of the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, as compared to the comesponding prior year periods. Realized and
unrealized gains on financial instraments, net during 2014 is attributable to a $32.8 million gain in the fair value of the Charter
warrants acquired during May 2013 which was the result of an inerease in the trading price of Charter common stock during the
year ended December 31, 2014. Charter warrants have an exercise price lower than the current trading price of the common stock
therefore an asset is recorded for an mcrease in stock price, Additionally, a $39.2 million net gain was recorded on the mvestment
in Tume Wamner Cable shares which was partially offset by a loss of $20.8 million on outstanding written call options. both
primarily resulting from an increase in the trading price of Time Warner Cable shares. The increase in the gain during 2013 is
amributable to a $38.2 million gain in the fair value of the Charter wamants owned by Liberty Broadband as the result of an
mcrease in the rading price of Charter common stock between the date they were acquired and December 31, 2013, Additionally,
an increase in the gain on the investment Time Wamer Cable shares and outstanding written call options as compared to the prior
year.

Gam (less) on dilurion of imveronent in equity affiliate

The losses in 2014 and 2013 are the result of the issuance of Charter conunon stock from the exercise of warrants and
stock options, held by outside investors (employees and other third parties), at prices below Broadband’s book basis per share.
As Broadband’s ownership in Charter changes due o exercises of Charter warrants and stock options, a loss is recorded with the
effective sale of common stock. becanse the exercise price of Charter warrants or stock options is typically lower than the book
value of the Charter shares held by Broadband.

Oher, net

Onther expenses increased $10 thousand and decreased $64 thousand for each of the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively, as compared to the comesponding prior year periods. The current vear increase is primarily attributable to an
mnerease in income tax penalties during 2014, The decrease in 2013 is primarily anributable to a décrease in income 1ax penalties
during 2013, partially offset by a decrease in the loss on disposition of property, plant and equipment and icreases in other
expenses.

Income raxes

Our effective tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was 33%, 35% and 38%, respectively.
During 2014, our effective tax rate was lower than the federal tax rate of 35% primarily due to the non-deductible impairment of
goodwill and other amortizable intangible assets related to Skyhook. During 2012, owr effective tax rate was higher than the
federal tax rate of 35% primarily due to tax expense related to a change in valuation allowance.

Ner earnings (losses)

We had net losses of $1.34.6 million, $41.7 million and 544.0 million for the vears ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012, respectively. The change in net losses was the result of the above-described flucmations in our revenne, expenses and other
zains and losses.
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As of December 31, 2014 substantially all of our cash and cash equivalents are invested in U.S. Treasury securities,
other government securities or government guaranteed funds, AAA rated money market funds and other highly rated financial
and corporate debt instruments.

The following are potential sources of liquidity: available cash balances, cash generated by the operating activities of
our privately-owned subsidiaries (to the extent such cash exceeds the working capital needs of the subsidiaries and is not
otherwise restricted), proceeds from asset sales. monetization of our other investments. outstanding debt facilities. debt and equity
issunnces, and dividend and interest receipts.

As of December 31, 2014, Liberty Broadband had a cash balance of $44.8 million. In addition, Liberty Broadband had
5169.5 million of unencumbered available for sale securites.

Years ended December 31,
2004 2013 2012
amounts in thowsands

Cash flow information

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities  § 2,728 5.475 6,438
Met cash provided (vsed) by investing activities §  (209.9%6) (2.624,868) (21.999)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 5 242816 2618613 (5.298)

During the vear ended December 31, 2014, our primary uses of cash were $175.9 million to acquire additional shares of
Charter and aet distributions to Liberty of $129.2 million.

The projected use of owr cash will be the continued operational needs of our subsidiary and potential investment in
location technology at TruePosition or other investment opportunities. Additionally. funds raised by the rights offering are
expected 1o fund parent level cash needs which could include the repayment of parent level credit arrangements and the further
investment in new or existing businesses.

On Dacember 10, 2014, stockhelders received a subscription right fo acquire one share of Series C Liberty Broadband
common stock for every five shares of Liberty Broadband common stock they held on the rights record date at a per share
subscription price of $40.36, which was a 20% discount to the 20-trading day volume weighted average trading price of owr
Series C common stock following the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off, The rights offering was fully subscribed on January
9, 2015, with 17,277,224 shares of Series C common stock isswed to those rightsholders exercising basic and, as applicable,
oversubscription privileges, The net proceeds received as a resulr of the rights offering was 5697 million.
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Off-Bailance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contractual Obligations

Information concermng the amount and timing of required payments, both accrued and off-balance sheet. under our
contractual obhigations, excluding uncertain tax positions as it 15 indetenninable when payments will be made, 1s summarized
below.

Pavinents due by period
Less than Afer
Total 1 vear 3.3 vears 4 -5 vears 5 vears
amaunts in millions

Consolidated contractual abligations
Long-termdebt .. ......... oo 5 I — 372 — —
Interest PayIients . .. ....ovememnrinrninann, s 19 7 12 —_ —_
Operating lease obligations 5 5 2 3 —_ —_
OHRETL ) i s 6 1 5 = —
E Lo +: | R ST T 5 402 10 392 — —

(1) Includes TruePosition open purchase orders and other guarantees.
5 tes 39

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of reveniie
and expenses during the reporting period. Listed below are the accounting estimates and accounting policies that we believe are
eritical to our financial statements due to the degree of uncertainry regarding the estimates or assumptions involved and the
magnitude of the asset, liability. revenue or expense being reported. All of these accounting estimates and assumptions, as well
as the resuliing impact to our financial statements. have been discussed with our andit commitiee,

Application of tie Equity Method of Acconnting for Investments in Affiliates.  For those investments in affiliates in
which the Company has the abiliry 1o exercise significant influence, the equity method of acconnting is used. Under this method,
the investiment, originally recorded at cost, is adjusted to recognize the Company's share of net eamings or losses of the affiliate
as they oceur rather than as dividends or other distributions are received. Losses are limited to the extent of the Company’s
investment in, advances to and commutments for the investee. The Company detenmines the difference between the purchase
price of the investes and the underlying equity which results in an excess basis in the investiment. This excess basis is allocated
to the underlying assets and labilites of the Company’s investee through a purchase accointing exeércise and is allocated within
memo accounts used for equity a ing purp Depending on the applicable underlying assets, these amounts are either
amortized over the applicable useful lives or reviewed for impainment upon triggering events.

Changes in the Company”s proportionate share of the underlying equity of an equity method investee, which result from
the issuance of additional equity secunities by such equity investee, to investors other than the
Company. are recognized in the statement of operations through the gain (loss) on dilution of investment in affiliate line item.
We periodically evaluate our equity method investent 1o determine if decreases in fair value below our cost bases are other than
temporary, If a decline in fair value is determined to be other than temporary. we are required to reflect such decline in our
consolidated starement of operations. Other than temporary declines in fair value of our squity method investments would be
inchuded in share of eamings (losses) of affiliates in our consolidated statement of operations,

The primary factors we consider in owr determination of whether declines in fair value are other than temporary are the
length of time that the fair value of the investment is below our carrying value: the severity of the decline; and the financial
condition, operating performance and near term prospects of the investee. In addition. we consider the reason for the decling in
fair value, be it general market conditions, industry specific or investee specific: analysts’ ratings and estimates of 12 month share
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price targets for the mvestee: changes in stock price or valuation subsequent to the balance sheet date: and our intent and ability
to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery in fair value. Fair value of our publicly traded cost
and equity investments 15 based on the market prices of the investments at the balance sheet date. We estimate the fair value of
our non-public cost and equity investments using a variety of methodologies, including cash flow multiples, discounted cash
flow, per subscriber values, or values of comparable public or private businesses. Impainnents are calculated as the difference
berween our camrying value and our estimate of fair value. As our assessment of the fair value of our investments and any resuliting
impairment losses and the timing of when to recognize such charges requires a high degree of judgment and includes significant
estimates and assumptions, actual results could differ materially from our estimates and assumptions.

Onr evaluation of the fair value of our investiments and any resulting unpairment charges are made as of the most recent
balance sheet date. Changes in fair value subsequent to the balance sheet date due to the factors described above are possible.
Subsequent decreases in fair value will be recognized in our consolidated statement of operations in the period in which they
occur to the extent such decreases are deemed to be other than temporary. Subsequent increases in fair value will be recognized
in our consolidated statement of operations only upon our ultimate disposition of the investment.

Fair Value of Non-Financial Instruments.  Our non-financial mstrament valuations are primarily comprised of our
determination of the estimated fair value allocation of net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired in business
combinations, our annual assessment of the recoverability of owr goodwill and other nonamortizable intangibles, and our
evaluation of the recoverability of our other long-lived assets upon certain triggering events.

The Company periodically reviews the carrying value of its intangible assets with defimte lives and other long-lived
assets of asset groups, including property and equipment, to be used in operations whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the camying amount of the assets or asset groups might not be recoverable. Factors that would necessitate an
impaiment assessment inclade a significant adverse change in the extent or manner in which an asset is used, a significant adverse
change in legal factors or the business climate that could affect the value of the asset group, or a significant decline in the
observable market value of an asset group, among others, If such facts indicate a potential impairment, the recoverability of the
asset group s assessed by derenmimng whether the canyving value of the asset group exceeds the sum of the projected
undiscownted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventval disposition of the asset group over the remaining economic
life of the asset group. If the carrying amount of the asset group is greater than the expected undiscounted cash flows to be
generated by such asset group, including its ultimate disposition, an impairment adjustment is recognized.

The accounting gindance pernuits entities to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely
than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impairved. If the qualitative assessment supports that it is more likely than not
that the carmrying value of the Company’s indefinite-hived intangible assets, other than goodwill, exceeds its fair value, then a
quantitative assessment is performed,

If the carrying value of our intangible or long-lived assets exceeds their estimated fair value, we are required to write
the camrying value down to fair value. Any such writedown is included in impaimment expense in owr consolidated statement of
operations. A high degree of judgment is required to estimate the fair value of our intangible and long-lived assets, We may use
quoted market prices, prices for similar assets, present value rechniques and other valuation techniques to prepare these estimares.
We may need to make estimates of fumire cash flows and discount rates as well as other nssumptions in order to implement these
valuation technigques. Due to the high degree of judgment invelved in our estimation techniques, any value ultimately derived
from our intangible or long-lived assers may differ from our estimate of fair value. As each of our operating segments have
intangible assets, this entical accounting policy affects the financial position and results of aperations of each segment.



As of December 31, 2014, the Company had $27.2 million of goodwill, attributable to the Company’s acquisitions of
TmePosition and Skyhook. primarily related to assembled workforces, non-contractual relationships and other intangibles thar
do net qualify for separate recognition.

We perform our annual assessment of the recoverability of our goodwill in the fourth quarter each year. The Company
utilizes a qualifative assessment for determining whether step one of the goodwill impairment analysis is necessary. The
accounting guidance permits entities to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair
value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-
step goodwill impairment test. In evaluating goodwill on a qualitative basis, the Company reviews the business performance of
each reporting unit and evaluates other relevant factors as identified in the relevant accounting guidance to determine whether it
is more likely than not that an indicated impairment exists for any of our reporting wnits, The Company considers whether there
are any negative macroeconomic conditions, ndustry specific conditions, market changes, increased competition, increased costs
in dong business, management challenges, the legal environments and how these factors might umpact company specific
performance in future periods, As part of the analysis, the Company also considers fair value determinations for certain reporting
units that have been made at various points throughout the curmrent and prior year for other purposes. In mid-November 2014,
Skyhook was notified that ene of its significant customers, representing approximately 30-40% of its revenue, is not expecied to
renew its contract for 2015, Due to this anticipated decline in Skyhook's operations. the Company performed a Step 2 impairment
test to determine the fair value of TruePosition and recorded a $35.2 million impairment loss related to TruePositions™ goodwill
and intangible assets during December 2014,

Fair Vaine of Financial Instraments,  All marketable debt and equity securities held by the Company are classified
as available-for-sale (“AFS™) and are carried at fair value generally based on quoted market prices. Fair valués aré determined
for each individual security in the investment portfolio. GAAP permits enrities to choose to meastre many financial instruments,
such as AFS securities. and certain other items at fair value and to recognize the changes in fair value of such instruments in the
entity’s statements of operations (the “Fair Value Option”). Liberty Broadband has elected the fair value option for those of its
AFS secunities which it considers to be non-strategic (“Fair Value Option Securities™). Accordingly, changes in the fair value of
Fair Value Option Securities, as determined by quoted market prices, are reported in realized and wnrealized gain (losses) on
financial mstiuments in the accompanying consolidated statemnents of operations. A small portion of the Company's AFS
securities are not designated as Fair Value Option Securities and from time to time are reviewed to determine whether a decline
in fair value below the carrying value is other than temporary. The primary factors considered in this determination are the length
of time that the fair value of the investment is below the camrying value. the severity of the decline. and the financial condition,
operating performance and near term prospects of the investee. In addition, the Company considers the reason for the decline in
fair value, be it general market conditions, industry specific or investee specific: analysts™ ratings and estimates of 12 month share
price targets for the investee; changes in stock price or valuation subsequent to the balance sheet date: and the Company’s mtent
and ability to hold the mvestment for a period of ime sufficient to allow for a recovery m fair value. If the dechine i fair value
is deemed to be other than temporary, the carmrying value of the security is written down to fair value, In sitnations where the fair
value of an investment is not evident due to a lack of public market price or other factors, the Company uses its best estimates
and assumptions to armive at the estumated fair value of such investments. The Company’s assessment of the foregoing factors
involves considerable management judgment and accordingly, actual results may differ materially from the Company’s estimates
and judgments, Writedowns for AFS securities would be inchuded in the consolidated statements of operations as other than
temporary declines in fair values of investments. There were no impainment charges recorded during 2014, 2013 or 2012.

All of the Company's derivatives, whether designated in hedging relationships or not. are recorded on the balance sheet
at fair value. If the derivative is designated as a fair value hedge. the changes in the fair value of the derivative and of the hedged
item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in earings. If the derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge. the effective
portions of changes in the fair value of the derivative are recorded in other comprehensive eamings and are recognized in the
statement of operations when the hedged item affects eamings. Ineffective portions of changes in the fair value of cash flow



hedges are recognized in eamings. If the denivative is not designated as a hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative are
recognized in eamings. None of the Company's derivatives are currently designated as hedges,

The fair value of cerfain of the Company’s derivative instnunents are estimated using the Black Scholes Merton option-
pricing model ("Black-Scholes model™). The Black-Scholes model meorporates a munber of variables in deternuning such far
values, including expected volatility of the underlying security and an appropriate discount rate. The Company obtains volatility
rates from pricing services based on the expected volatility of the underlying security over the remaining term of the derivative
instnument, A discount rate is obtained at the inception of the derivative instnunent and updated each reporting period, based on
the Company’s estimate of the discount rate at which it could currently settle the derivative instrument. The Company considered
its own credit risk as well as the credit risk of its counterparties in estimating the discount rate. Management judgment is required
in estimating the Black-Scholes variables.

Revenue Recognition.  TruePosition eams revenue from the sale of hardware and licensing of software required to
generate location records for wireless phones and other wireless devices on a cellular network and from the design, installation,
testing. and commissioning of such hardware and software. Inaddition, TruePosition earns software maintenance revenue through
the provision of ongoing technical and sofrware support.

TruePosition’s tangible products contain software components and nen-sofiware components that function together to
defiver the tangible products” essential functionality. Under the applicable accounting guidance. amangements for such products
are excluded from the scope of software revenue recognition guidance and are subject to the guidance for multiple-element
arrangements. Accordingly, for multiple-element arrangements emtered into or materially modified on or after January 1. 2011,
the overall arrangement fee is allocated to each element (both delivered and undelivered items) based on their relative selling
prices, regardless of whether those selling prices are evidenced by vendor specific objective evidence (“VSOE™) or third-party
evidence of selling price or are based on the entity's estumated selling price. The associated revenue for each element is recognized
upon delivery assuming all other eniteria for revenue recognition are met.

For arrangements which do not qualify for reatment under the guidance, TruePosition continues 1o account for such
arangements consistent with the outstanding guidance for software revenue recognition. Under those policies, for revenue
derived from nultiple-element amangements, if VSOE exists for each of the elements of the amrangement at the outset, the
Company allocates the revenue to the varions elements for recognition upon delivery of each element. If not, the revenue 15
deferred until the earlier of establishing sufficient VSOE for allocating revenue for recognition or delivery of all of the elements.
If a multiple-element arrangement includes post-contract customer suppert (commonly referred to as maintenance), VSOE mwust
exist for the maintenance in order to allocate revenue to all of the elements of the amrangement. If VSOE does not exist for the
maintenance, revenue for the entire arrangement is recognized ratably over the contractual or expected term of the maintenance
arrangement.

Direct costs related to multiple-element arrangements are deferred and recognized as the related revenue is recognized.
Direct costs melude installation services. hardware, and software costs.

TruePosition’s multiple-element arrangement with its significant customer also contemplates usage-based transaction
fees for certain commercial uses of TruePosition’s hardware and software. To date. no transaction fees have been eamed.

TruePosition also provides training, technical. and repair services under its multiple-element arrangements. Revenue is
recognized upon delivery of the services.

In May 2014. the FASB issued new accounting guidance on revenue from contracts with customers. The new guidance
requires an entity fo recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or
serviees to customers. The updated guidance will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in GAAP when 1t becomes
effective and permits the use of either a retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. This guidance is effective for fiscal
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vears, and intenim perieds within those fiscal vears, beginning after December 15, 2016, The Company is curvently evaluating
the effect that the new standard may have on its revenue recognition and has not yet selected a ransition method but does not
believe the standard will significant its financial statements and related disclosures,

Income Taxes. We are required to estimate the amount of tax payable or refundable for the ewrrent year and the
deferred mcome tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of events that have been reflected m our financial
statements or tax renuns for each taxing jurisdiction in which we operate. This process requires our management to make
judgmients regarding the timing and probability of the ultimate tax impact of the various agreements and transactions that we
enter into. Based on these judgments we may record tax reserves or adjustments to valuation allowances on deferred tax assets
to reflect the expected realizability of future tax benefits. Actual income taxes could vary from these estimates due to futuwe
changes in income tax law, significant changes in the jurisdictions in which we operate. our inability to generate sufficient future
taxable income or unpredicted results from the final determination of each vear's liability by taxing authorities. These changes
could have a significant impact on our financial position,

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

We are exposed to market risk in the nommal course of business due to our engoing investing and financial activities,
Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in stock prices and interest rates. The risk of loss can be assessed
from the perspective of adverse changes in fair values, cash flows and futwre earnings. We have established policies. procedures
and internal processes govemning our management of market risks and the use of financial instruments 1o manage our exposure
to such rsks.

We are exposed to changes in interest rates primarily as a result of our bomowing and investment activities, which
include investments in fixed and floating rate debt instruments and borrowings used to maintain liquidity and to fund business
operations. The nature and amount of our long-term and short-term debt are expected to vary as a result of future requirements,
market conditions and other factors. We manage our exposure to mterest rates by maintainmng what we believe is an appropriate
mix of fixed and variable rate debt. We believe this best protects us from interest rate risk. We have achieved this mix by (i)
issuing fixed rate debrt that we believe has a low stated interest rate and significant term to maturity. (ii) issuing variable rate debt
with appropriate maturities and mterest rates and (111) entering into interest rate swap arrangements when we deem appropriate.
As of December 31, 2014, our debt is comprised of the following amounts:

Variahle rate deht Fized rate delt
Principal Weighted avg Principal Weighted avg
amatiEl imterest Fate ETCOT interest rate
dollar amounts in millions
H an 1.8% § — NA

‘We are exposed to changes in stock prices primarily as a result of our significant holdings in publicly traded securities.
We continually monitor changes in stock markets, in general, and changes in the stock prices of our holdings, specifically. We
believe thar changes in stock prices can be expected to vary as a result of general market conditions, technological changes,
specific industry changes and other factors, We periodically use equity collars and other financial instrements to manage marker
risk associated with certain investment positions. These instraments are recorded at fair value based on option pricing models.

At December 31, 2014, the fair value of our AFS equity securities was $360.8 million. Had the market price of such
securnties been 10% lower at December 31, 2014, the aggregate value of such securities would have been $36.1 million lower.
Additionally. our stock in Charter (our equity method affiliate) is publicly traded and not reflected at fair value m our balance sheet.
Our investment in Charter is also subject to market risk that is not directly reflected in our financial statements.



Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,

The consolidated financial statements of Liberty Broadband Corporation are filed under this Item. beginning on Page
F-19. The financial statement schedules required by Regulation S-X are filed under Item 15 of this Annnal Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure,
None.
Controls and Procedures.

In accordance with Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15, the Company cammed out an evaluation, under the
supervision and with the participation of management, mcluding its chief executive officer and its principal accounting and
financial officer (the "Executives"), of the effectiveness of its disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, the Executives concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures
were effective as of December 31. 2014 to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in its reports
filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in
the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and forms.

This annual report does not nclude a report of management’s assessment regarding intermal control over financial
reporting or an attestation report of the Company s registered public accounting firm due to a transition period established by
rules of the Secunties and Exchange Commission for newly public companies.

There has been no change in the Company's intemnal control over financial reporting that oceurred during the three
months ended December 31, 2014 that has materially affected, or 15 reasonably likely to matenially affect. its intemal control over
financial reporting.

Other Information.

None.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Liberty Broadband Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Liberty Broadband Corporation (the Company) as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive earnings (loss), cash flows,
and equity for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2014, These consolidated financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
staternents based on our audits.

We conducted our andits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the andit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An andit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

I our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred 1o above present fairly, in all matenal respects. the financial position
of the Company as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the vears
in the three-year period ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

fs! KPMG LLP

Denver. Colorado
March 12, 2015
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LIBERTY BROADBAND CORFORATION

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2014 and 2013

Assers
Current assets:
Cash and cashequivalents. ... ... . .oovuirinrrioriinreinriainriianies
Trade and other receivables. m
Restricted casl "=
Inventory. . o i N o e T B e e AT
Short-term marketable SECUREs . ..o ooo oo
Deferred income tax assets (mofe 9) . ... ...ttt it iariiiea e
Derivative mstrmments (ote ). .. ..o e e e
Note receivable from paremt (note 13) .. ... ... i
T AT MRAEDE . s cos ocin s s i s boms o A s S
Total current assets . .....cocvniviinaniian
Investments in a\'aliable-fm'-sale secu.nnes (note 5) . S
Investments in affiliates, acconnted for nsing the equlty mﬂllod (ume 6] ..........
Property and ecyiipment, 8L . . v o sine ¥ in g ey s waa S R s e g e i K e
roadenll aDESTY o e e R e T T T
Intangible assets subject to amortization, net (note 7). 4 .
Deferred income tax assets (note 9). . .......ooiauen
Onhier assets, at cost, net of aceunmilated amortization
TORBl B e e e e R e T R RN
Liabilities and Equiry
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and acerued liabilities . .. ...l it n i
Dleferred TEVEIIE . .. ...ttt
Dierivative imstruments (note 4). .
Other cwrrent hiabilities ... .., ..
Total current Habilities .. . ool inii et aiiiatan i sia s ibin
Debt (note 8) .. ......
Deferred revenue
Deferred income tax habilites (mote 9. - ... oo
Towmd Habilitles . . ..ol oo i dedadianind el v s doaa i
Equity
Preferved stock, $.01 par value. Authorized 50,000,000 shares: no shares issued . . ..
Series A common stock. 3.01 par value. Authorized 500,000,000 shares: issued and
outstanding 26,126,459 and none at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. . .
Series B common stock, $.01 par value. Authorized 18,750,000 shares; 1ssued and
outstanding 2. 467,547 and none at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. . ..
Sertes C common stock, $.01 par value. Authorized 500,000,000 shares; issued and
ouwtstanding 57,189,897 and none at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. . .
PRESOT S BOVRRIIBIE . . - v vativ 4 oo s b ¥k b m e fo g e R S b D
Additional pasd=in Capital, ..o vv e i e se e s e e e
Accunmlated other comprehensive camings, net of faxes. .. .....oovvvvivnieaias
Retained eamings (accumulated deficit). ...... .o iiiiiinniiiiiiiiiniinias
Total equity. .
Conumitments nnd coutlugmcles (:J.ote 14) ...................................
Total liabilities and 6qUitY. .. ccovriorainrvrsrersniinnssresaranarnsrnias

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2014

013

amounts in thowsands

-1 44,809 9,251
617 523

4082 4,074

5 441

9.001 =

11.282 17,598

— 97,847

— 19,060

10.639 6.000

§0.430 154,794
360.762 326,700
2,498,804 2,402,024
3.590 4,660

27.166 20,669

12,915 429

19,540 —

725 103

§ 3003932 3.909.379
5 15953 9,335
5,947 3260

75,356 54,600

2.340 2.512

99,506 70,107
372.000 =
37.567 35,740

— 24,338

509.163 130,185

261 =

25 =

572 -

— 2,986,079

2,835,373 —
7918 7890
(349.380) (214,775)
2,494,769 3.779.194

$  3.003932 2,909,379



LIBERTY BROADBAND CORPORATION

Consolidated Starements of Operations

Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Revenue:

Operating costs and expenses
Cost of goods sold .
Write-down of i m\'enrnry
Operating. including s‘tocH.mwd compeusa ion (notes 3,11). . Fre it
Selling, general and administrative, including stock-based compeusa?ln

CODMMEIT LY vy o i S0 B A0 B o A AR R
Research and development, including stock-based compensation (notes 3,11} ..
Gain on legal settlement

Impairment of intangible assets (note 7) .
Depreciation and amortization .. .......... T B R A A

Oprecating oo Tloss) 5o s i Ba s rarmimis s
Other income (expense):
T BT . oo v s i s e T o S A e
Dividend and interest income
Share of eamings (losses) of affiliates (note 6) i
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on financial instraments, net (note 4}
Gain (loss) on dilution of investment in affiliate (note 6). ... .............00s
OB T £y Ly s o imas Cr e s R LA e b R R A s
Earmings (loss) from oonlmulllg npemhom bcfou IMCOME 1AXes .. .........
Income tax benefit (eXpense). . ..vuuuvior v i ciiiii e s e
Net eamings (loss) from continming operations ...........00v0en..
Eamings (loss) from discontineed operations
Netearnings (Jss) . oo oive v ids i vt s dhass 0y o it eaae
Less net eamings (loss) attributable to the noncontrolling interests . .. .. .. "
Net eamings (loss) attributable to Liberty Broadband shareholders . .........
Basic and diluted net eammgs (loss) from contimung operations atimbutable to
Series A, Series B and Senies C Liberty Broadband shareholders per
oot share{mobe ) 5 L wm  a fa s e D T e e
Basic and diluted net eamings (loss) attributable to Series A, Series B and Series C
Liberty Broadband shareholders per conunon share (note 3)......... N

2014 2013 2012
amounts in thowsands,
except per share amounts

§ 58426 61,264 64,113
10.619 16.099 18.985
69.045 77.363 83.098
466 15,548 9.189

363 445 11,169

6,671 7.451 8.825
47,778 34,068 24,397
18477 15,557 15,800
(6,000) —+ ==
35221 — —
9.043 4382 5.839
112.019 77.451 75.219
(42.974) (88) 7.879
(1,138) - -
5426 6,878 5415
(127.573)  (76.090) —
51189 97.860 57.582
(87.158)  (92.933) -
(63} (53) (117)
(202,291)  (64.426) 70.759
67.686 22,698 (26.856)
(134.605)  (41.728) 43,903
— — 133
(134.605)  (41.728) 44,036
= = (160)

§ (134.605)  (41.728) 44,196
s (L52) (0.47) 0.50
$  (L52) (0.47) 0.50

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY BROADBAND CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Comprebensive Earnings (Loss)
Years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

014 2013 2012
amants in thousands
et esrrmmnges (IoSe) & 5l vi i TSNS R s P T e L o § (134.605) (41.728) 44,036
Other comprehensive earmings (loss). net of taxes:
Unrealized holding gams (losses) ansing during the period. .. ........... .. (3.163) 2.105 949
Share of other cmnprelieﬂsne eamings (loss) o!‘equity affiliates . ey 3.191 3.745 —
Other comprehensive eamings (loss), net of taxes | R R 28 5.850 949
Comprehensive eamings (loss) . i pas (134,577} (35.878) 44,985
Less comprehensive eamnings (Inss} altnlmlablc 10 |I:.= nmmcmmllmn. mreres:s. =L e (160)
Comprehensive eamings (loss) anributable to Liberty Broadband shareholders . . § (134.577) (35.878) 45,145

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY BROADBAND CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2004, 2013 and 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:

T Rarmings CIOREY & o o S R S R
Adjustments to reconcile net eamings (loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortiZation .. ........iiiiiiieiiiinaiian.,
Stock-based compensation . ... .o i e e
Impairment of intangible assets . ............ocooiiai.
Cash payments for stock-based compensation .. ...............
Share of (eamings) losses of affiliates. net .
Realized and nnrealized {gains) losses on fmmcml msmmmus nel
(Gain) loss on dilution of investment in affiliate. . ..............
Deferved inconie tax expense (benefit)
Oher non-cash charges (creditsh met. . ..ot
Changes mn operating assets and liabilities:
Current and Other ASSELS. . .. .. cxvecvusarmssnvnsanosossos
Payables and other liabilities. . ........
Net cash provided by operating activities , . .

Cash flows from investing activities:

Capital expended for property and equipment. . .................
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of eash aequred . ... ......... ...
Proceeds (payments) from issuanees and settlements of financial
IOSTOEORIIES, UL o il D e 3 S O B i e e S e
Investments in equity investees, .. ........
Amounts loaned to former parent. .. .. ........
Repayments by former parent on loan receivable . ..
Purchases of short term investments and other nmrkenble secumles
Other investing Activities, THE . . ..o cvvverrcornieininranarienes
Net cash used in nvestng achvities . .....o.vverenriennrian..

Cash flows from financing activities:

Bamrowings S a5 v ouiniisn g s i
Contribution from (distribution to) former parent, net .. ..........
Proceeds from issuances of financial instruments ... ... ...
Payments from settlements of financial instrumemts. .............
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .............
Wet increase (decrease) m cash. . . .o o vnvrn i rre i
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year. .................
Cash and cash equivalents, endofyear. .........ooiiuiae

Supplemental disclosure to the consolidated statements of cash flows:

014 2013 2012
amaunts in thonsands

s {134,605) (41.728) 44,036
9.043 4,382 5,839
999 996 {2.383)

35,221 — _
(732) (765) (758)

127,573 76,090 —_
(51.189) (97.860) (57.582)

87.158 92,033 —
(66.703) (30,924) 19,837

s 39 20

446 7.729 15,772
(4,501} (5.417) (18.343)

2.728 5.475 6.438
(1.398) (1.127) (1.893)
(48.088) — —

—- (59.612) —

(175.857) (2,565.150) —
(55.646) (58.344) (35,000)

30,012 59,373 14911

(9.001) —_ —
(8) (%) (7
(209.986) (2.624.868) (21.999)
372,000 — —
(129,184) 2,618,613 (6.994)
130,237 63,547 39,230
(130.237) (63.547) (37.534)
242.816 2.618.613 (5.298)
35,358 (780) (20.859)

9.251 10,031 30,890

5 44,809 9.251 10.031

Years ended December 31
014 20131 2012
ammonnts in thomsands

s 1,078 — —
s 2.870 16,577 10,939
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LIBERTY BROADBAND CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
(1} Basis of Presentation

During May 2014, the board of directors of Liberty Media Corporation and its subsidiaries {“Libeny.” formerly named
Liberty Spinco. Inc.) authorized management to pursue a plan to spin-off to its stockholders common stock of a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Liberty Broadband Corporation (“Liberty Broadband™), and to distnbute subscription nights to acquire shares of
Liberty Broadband's comumon stock (the “Broadband Spin-Off). At 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on November 4, 2014 the
Broadband Spin-Off was completed and shares of Liberty Broadband common stock were distributed o the shareholders of
Liberty as of a record date of 5:00 p.a., New York City time, on October 29, 2014. Liberty Broadband 15 comprised of, among
other things, (i) Liberty’s former interest in Charter Communications, Inc. (“Charter™), (i) Liberty’s former wholly-owned
subsidiary TruePosition. Inc. (“TruePosition™). (iii) Liberry's former minority equity investment in Time Wamer Cable, Inc.
(*Time Wamer Cable™), (iv) certain deferred tax liabilities, as well as liabilities related to the Time Warner Cable written call
option and (v) initial indebtedness, pursnant to margin loans entered into prior to the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off.
These financial statements refer to the combination of the aforementioned subsidiary, investments, and financial instrunents, as
“Liberty Broadband,” “the Company.” *us,” *we” and “our” in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. The Broadband
Spin-Off was accounted for at lustorical cost due to the pro rata nature of the distribution to holders of Liberty commeon stock.

In the Broadband Spin-Off. record holders of Liberty Series A, Series B and Series C commeon stock received one-fourth
of a share of the corresponding senes of Liberty Broadband common stock for each share of Liberty common stock held by them
as of 5:00 pany., New York City time, on October 29, 2014 (the record date). with cash pard m lien of fractional shares. In addition.
following the completion of the Broadband Spin-OfY, on December 10, 2014, stockholders received a subscription nght to acquire
one share of Series C Liberty Broadband common stock for every five shares of Liberty Broadband common stock they held as
of 5:00 p.m., New York City time., on December 4, 2014 (the rights record date), See “Note 10 Stockholders’ Equity™ for additional
information related to the rights offering.

Following the Broadband Spin-Off. Liberty and Liberty Broadband operate as separate, publicly traded companies. and
neither has any stock ownership, beneficial or otherwise. in the other. In connection with the Broadband Spin-Off, Liberty and
Liberty Broadband entered into certain agreements in order to govemn certain of the ongoing relationships between the rwo
companies after the Broadband Spin-Off and to provide for an orderly transition, These agreements include a reorganization
agreement, a services agreement, a facilities shanng agreement and a tax sharing agreement.

The reorganization agreement provides for, among other things, the principal corporate transactions (including the
internal restructuring) required to effect the Broadband Spin-Off, certain conditions to the Broadband Spin-Off and provisions
governing the relationship between Liberty Broadband and Liberty with respect to and resulting from the Breadband Spin-Off,
The tax sharing agreement provides for the allocation and indemnification of tax labilities and benefits between Liberty and
Liberty Broadband and other agreements related to tax matters. Pursuant to the tax sharing agreement, Liberty Broadband has
agreed to indemnify Liberty, subject to certain linited exceptions. for losses and taxes resulting from the Broadband Spin-Off to
the extent such losses or taxes result primanly from. individually or in the aggregate, the breach of certain restrictive covenants
made by Liberty Broadband (applicable to actions or failures o act by Liberty Broadband and its subsidiaries following the
completion of the Broadband Spin-Off). Pursuant to the services agreement, Liberty provides Liberty Broadband with general
and administrative services including legal, tax. accounting. treasury and investor relations support, Under the facilities shanng
agreement, Liberty Broadband shares office space with Liberty and related amenities at Liberty’s corporate headguarters, Liberty
Broadband will rennburse Liberty for direct, out-of-pocket expenses mcured by Liberty m providing these services which wall
be negotiated semi-anmmally.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepred
accounting principles in the Unired States (“GAAF™) and represent a combination of the historical financial information of
TmePosition, the Company”s interest in Charter, the Company s minority equity investment in Time Wamer Cable and certain
deferred tax liabilities, as well as liabilities related to the Time Wamer Cable call option, All significant intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated i the consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY BROADBAND CORFORATION
Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
(2)  Description of Business

TruePosition was incorporated on November 24, 1992, TruePosition develops and markets technology for locating
wireless phones and other wireless devices on a cellular network, enabling wireless carriers and government agencies to provide
public safety E-9-1-1 services domestically and services in support of national security and law enforcement worldwide. Since
2012, TruePosition has been largely dependent on one wireless carrier (AT&T). which accounted for approximately 90% of
TmePosition’s overall revenue. Additionally, AT&T s contract expires on January 1, 2016,

In 2012. TruePosition shut down EmFinders, a subsidiary focused on developing and marketing devices to be worn by
individuals with medical impairments. During 2012, the minority interest owners in EmFinders relinguished their ownership
interests and EmFinders later ceased business operations. The consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes of
Liberty Broadband have been prepared reflecting EmFinders as a discontinued operation.

The following operating results of EmFinders are reported separately under discontinued operations in the
accompanying consolidared statement of operations (amounts in thousands):

Year ended
December 11,
2012
amonnts in theusands
T T 3 113
Net earnings (loss) before income taxes .. .......cooivicrinneria-n 3 (2.022)
Tncomnt Tk DEREEIE i e A e e R e R b3 2,155

The net eamnings (loss) per share from discontinued operations attriburable ro Liberty Broadband shareholders, discussed
above, is as follows:

Year ended
December 31,
2012
Basic earnings (losses) from discontinued operations attributable to Liberty
Broadband shareholders per common share. .. ....ooovv o 5 0.00

Operating cash outflows attributable to discontinued operations were $910 thousand for the year ended December 31,
2012,

On Febmary 14, 2014, TruePosition acquired 100% of the outstanding common shares of Skyhook Wireless. Inc.
{*Skyhook”), a Delaware corporation, for approximately $57.5 mullion in cash. Skyhook 15 a provider of hybnd wireless
positioning teclmology and contextal location intelligence. Acquisition related costs of $958 thousand and §624 thousand are
included in selling, general and administrative expenses for the years ending December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
TruePosition used its cash plus a capital contribution of $49.4 nullion from Liberty during 2014 to fund the acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of Skyheok. TruePosition placed $6.0 million of the cash consideration into an eserow account for use to senle any
indemmification claims made by TruePosition during the 12 months subsequent to closing the acquisition. There were no
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LIBERTY BROADBAND CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

claims made against the escrow account, and the full amount was released to the selling parties during February 2015, The purchase
price allocation resulted in the following (amounts in thousands):

Cash and cash equivalents. . ......ooiiiiiii i s 9.442
L L P e S e et 24,931
Amortizable intangible assets. .. ...l i i e s 35,508
OhET ATOEE .o i v v e i = e w8 e 1,353
Accounts payable and acerued liabilities. ... ..o (6.905)
Diefanred pevemie’ oo im i naind aia i i nlaiag (5.000)
EIARTRtl OIRES . s s o e e o e e B L i (1.889)
$ 57.530

Amortizable intangible assets acqured include tradenames, customer relationships, and software. The faw value of these
assets was determined using projected cash flows based on Level 3 inputs, and the remaming useful life of these assets was determined
to be 5 vears. Accordingly, the amortizable intangible assets acquired will be amontized straght-line over this period. Goodwill is
caleulared as the excess of the consideration transferred over the identifiable net assets acquired and represents the future economic
benefits expected to arise from other intangible assets acquired that do not qualify for separate recognition. including assembled
waorkforce and non-contracreal relationships. Assuming the Skyvhook transaction took place on January 1. 2013, the Company’s
revenue would have been approximately $85.9 million, the operating loss would have been $11.7 million and the net loss would have
been £48.7 million on a pro forma basis for the year ended December 31, 2013, The previous amounts were determined using historical
results of Liberty Broadband and Skyhook, meluding purchase accounting amortization. Such amounts are not indicative of what
actual amounts might have been had the transaction occurred as of that date,

In mud-November 2014, Skyhook was notified that one of its significant customers 15 not expected to renew its contract for
2015. As a result, approximately 30-40% of Skyvhook's revenue may not be recurming for 2015. Due to this anticipated decline in
Skyhoaok's operations, the Company performed a Step 2 impatrment test to deternune the fauw value of Skyhook and recorded a $35.2
million impairment loss related 1o TruePositions goodwill and intangible assets related 10 Skyhook during December 2014. See note
7 for additional discussion regarding this impairment loss.

Charter is a cable operator that provides services in the United States. Charter offers to residential and cot ial cu 5
raditional cable video programming. Intemet services, and voice services, as well as advanced video services such as Chamer
OnDemand™, high definition television, and digital video recorder (“DVR") service. Charter sells its cable video programmuing,
Internet, voice, and advanced video services primarily on a subscription basis, Charter also sells local advertising on cable nerworks
and on the Internet and provides fiber connectivity to cellular towers, Liberty acquired its interest in Charter on May 1, 2013, At
December 31, 2014, Liberty Broadband owned approximately 28.8 mullion shares of Charter conmmon stock, which represents an
approximate 26% ownership interest in Charter's issued and outstanding shares as of December 31, 2014, Under Liberty's stockholders
agreement with Charter, Liberty had the night to nominate four directors to the Charter board of divectors, subject to certain exclusions
and requirements. Liberty also had the right to cause one of its nominees to serve on the nominating and corporate govemnance, audit
and compensation and benefits committees of the board, provided they meet the independence and other qualifications for membership
on those committees. These rights were ransferved to Liberty Broadband in connection with the Broadband Spin-Off,

Also included in Liberty Broadband is an investment in outstanding shares of Time Wamer Cable, which is classified as
available-for-sale and is camied at fair value based on quoted market prices. As of December 31. 2013, the Company had rwo
outstanding written call options. each on 625,000 Time Wamer Cable shares with strike prices of $91.6834 and $90.8420 per share
which expired in February and Angust 2014, respectively, During 2014, the Company entered into two separate written call options,
each on 625,000 Tinve Wamer Cable shares with strike prices of $92.0232 and $90.8420 per share which were rolled into two new
call options during October 2014. As of December 31, 2014, the Company had an outstanding witten call option on 625,000 Time
Warmer Cable shares with a strike price of $92.0232 per share which expired m Febmary 2015, Additonally, as of December 31,
2014, the Company had another outstanding written eall option on 625,000 Time Warner Cable shares with a strike price of $92.8420
per share which expires in May 2015.
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(3)  Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies

Casl and Cash Equivealents

Cash consists of cash deposits held in global financial instintions. Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments
with maturities of three months or less at the time of acquisition. Cash that has restrictions upon its usage has been excluded from
cash and cash equivalents. Resmicted cash comprises bank deposits securing a line of credit (note &), Restricted cash was
54 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Acconnis

Accounts receivable are recorded at the imvoiced amount and reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts, Such
allowance aggregated approximately $45 thousand and $1 thousand at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, For accounts
outstanding longer than the contractual payment terms, the Company determines an allowance by considering a number of factors,
inchuding the length of time trade accounts receivable are past due, previous loss history, a specific customer’s ability to pay its
obligations to us, and current economic conditions.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

All of the Company’s derivatives, whether designated in hedging relationships or not, are recorded on the balance sheet
at fair value, If the derivative is designated as a fair value hedge, the changes i the fair value of the denvative and of the hedged
item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in camings. If the derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge. the effective
portions of changes in the fair value of the derivative are recorded in other comprehensive eamings and are recognized in the
statement of operations when the hedged item affects eamings. Ineffective portions of changes in the fair value of eash flow
hedges are recognized in eamnings. If the denvative is not designated as a hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative are
recognized in earnings. None of the Company’s derivatives are currently designated as hedges.

The fair value of certain of the Company’s derivative instnunents are estimated using the Black Scholes Merton option-
pricing model (“Black-Scholes model”). The Black-Scholes model incorporates a number of vanables i deternumng such fair
values, ncluding expected volatility of the underlymg secunity and an appropnate discount rate, The Company obtained volanlity
rates from pricing services based on the expected volatlity of the underlying security over the remaining term of the denvative
mstrument. A discount rate was obtained at the meeption of the derivative instnunent and updated each reporting period. based
on the Company’s estimate of the discount rate at which it could currently settle the denvative instnunent. The Company
considerad its own credit risk as well as the credit risk of its counterparties in estinating the discount rate. Management judgment
was required in estimating the Black-Scholes variables. See note 4 for further discussion of fair value of the Company s derivative
instriments,

Inventory
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market, determined on a first-in. first-out method. During the years ended

December 31, 2014. 2013 and 2012, the Company recorded write-downs of inventory of $363 thousand. $445 thousand and $11.2
million. respectively.
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Property amd Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following (amounts in thousands):

December 31
14 013
SUPPOTtAQUIDIIRIL. oo bas v v s e i VR e R i R § 34,526 34,542
COmpites SUPIIIL, « v vy e s ame s s G s S 3,582 3961
FOTURIN & TEEIETRE .« . o omvhonvnmmm v nrb b 8 e e e 2,006 1.849
39.914 40,352
Accumnlated depreciation. . .. ... v viien e i e i e (36.324) (35.692)

$ 3590 4.660

Property and equipment is recorded at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which is three vears for computer equipment and five years for support
equipment and fumiture and fixiures.

Investments

All masketable debt and equity securities held by the Company are classified as available-for-sale (“*AFS") and are camied
at fair value generally based on quoted market prices. Fair values are determined for each mdividual secunity m the mvestment
portfolio. Unrealized gains and losses, net of taxes, arising from changes in fair value are reported in accummlated other
comprehensive ncome (loss) as a component of shareholders” equity.

GAAP permits entities to choose to measure many financial instnunents, such as AFS securities. and certain other items at
fair value and to recognize the changes in fair value of such instruments in the entity’s statements of operations (the “Fair Value
Option™). Liberty Broadband has elected the fair value option for those of its AFS securities which it considers to be non-strategic
(“Fair Value Option Securities™). Accordingly. changes in the fair value of Fair Value Option Securities. as determined by quoted
market prices. are reported in realized and unrealized gain (losses) on financial instruments in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations. The total value of AFS securities for which the Company has elected the fair value option aggregated
£360 million and $320 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Company continually reviews its AFS securities not designated as Fair Value Option Securities to determine whether
a decline in fair value below the carrving value is other than temporary. The primary factors considered in this detenmination are the
length of time that the fair value of the investment is below the carrying value, the severity of the decline, and the financial condition,
operating performance and near term prospects of the investee. In addition, the Company considers the reason for the decline in fair
value, be it general market conditions, industry specific or investee specific: analysts” ratings and estimates of 12 month share price
targets for the investee: changes in stock price or valuation subsequent to the balance sheet date: and the Company’s intent and abiliry
to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery in fair value, If the decline in fair value is deemed to be
other than temporary, the carrying value of the security 1s written down to fair value, In sitiations where the fair value of an
nvestrent is not evident due to a lack of public market price or other factors, the Company uses its best estimates and assumptions
to arrive at the estimated fair value of such nvestments, The Company’s assessment of the foregoing factors mvolves considerable
management judgment and accordingly. actual results may differ materially from the Company's estimates and judgments.
Writedowns for AFS securities would be included in the consolidated statements of operations as other than temporary declines in
fair values of invesments, There were no impainment charges recorded during 2014, 2013 or 2012,

For those investments in affiliates in which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence, the equity
method of accounting is used. Under this method, the investment, onginally recorded at cost. is adjusted to recognize the
Company’s share of net eamings or losses of the affiliate as they oceur rather than as dividends or other distnbutions are received.
Losses are limited to the extent of the Company’s investment in. advances to and commitments for the investee. The Company’s
share of net eamings or loss of affiliates also includes any other than temporary declines in fair value recognized during the period,
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Changes in the Company’s proportionate share of the underlving equity of an equity method investee, which result from the
issuance of additional equity securities by such equity investee. are recognized in the statement of operations through the gain
{less) on dilution of investment m affiliate line item. To the extent there is a difference between our ownership percentage in the
underlying equity of an equity methed mvestee and our carrying value, such difference is accounted for as if the equity method
investee were a consolidated subsidiary.

As Liberty Broadband does not control the decision making process or business management practices of affiliates
accounted for using the equity method, Liberty Broadband relies on management of its affiliates to provide it with accurate
financial information prepared in accordance with GAAP that the Company uses in the application of the equity method. In
addition, Liberty Broadband relies on the audit repornts that are provided by the affiliates” independent auditors on the financial
statements of such affiliates. The Company is not aware. however, of any errors in or possible misstatements of the financial
information provided by its equity affiliates that would have a material effect on Liberty Broadband's consolidated financial
statements.

Leases

The Company, through its consolidated entities, leases facilities and certain equipment under cancelable and non-
cancelable lease agreements. The terms of some of the lease agreements provide for rental payments on a graduated basis. Remt
expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease period and acerued as rent expense incurred but not paid. The lease
term begins on the date we become legally obligated for the rent payments or when we take possession of the office space,
whichever is earlier.

Goodwill and Other Intangibie Assets

The Company performs at least annually an assessment of the recoverability of goodwill and other indefinite-lived
intangible assets during the fourth quarter of each year. The Company utilizes a qualitative assessment for deternuning whether
the quantitative impairment analysis 1s necessary. The accounting guidance permuts entities to first assess qualitative factors to
determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for
determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-step unpairment test. In evaluating goodwill on a qualitative basis. the
Company reviews the business performance of each reporting unit and evaluates other relevant factors as identified in the relevam
accounting guidance to detenine whether it was more likely than not that an indicated impairment exists for any of our reporting
units. The Company considers whether there are any negative macroeconomic conditions, industry specific conditions, market
changes, increased competition, increased costs in doing business, management challenges. the legal environments and how these
factors nught impact company-specific performance i future periods.

If & step one test is considered necessary for goodwill impaiment testing based on the qualitative factors, the Company
compares the estimated fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying value. Developing estimates of fair value requires significant
Judgments. mcluding making assumptions about appropriate discount rates, perpetual growth rates, relevant comparable market
multiples, public trading prices and the amount and tming of expected future cash flows. The cash flows employed in the
Company’s valuation analysis are based on management’s best estimates considering current marketplace factors and nisks as
well as assumptions of growth rates in future years. There is no assurance that actual results in the ftare will approximate these
forecasts. For those reporting units whose carryving value exceeds the fair value, a second test is required to measure the
impairment loss (the “Step 2 Test™). In the Step 2 Test, the fair value (Level 3) of the reporting unit is allocated to all of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the reporting unit with any residual value being allocated to goodwill. Any excess of the
carrying value of the goodwill over this allocated amount 1s recorded as an impainnent charge.

The accounting guidance also permits entities to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more

likely than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is inpaired, If the qualitative assessment supports that it 15 more likely
than not that the camying value of the Company’s mdefinite-lived intangible assets, other than goodwill, exceeds its fair value,
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then a quantitative assessment is performed. If the cammying value of an indefinite-lived mtangible asset exceeds its fair value, an
impairment loss 1s recognized in an amount equal to that excess.

Internal Use Saftware Development Cosis

Certain costs ineurred during the application development stage related to the development of internal use software are
capitalized and included in other intangible assets. Capitalized costs include internal and external costs. if direct and incremental,
and deemed by management to be significant. Costs related to the planning and post implementation phases of software
development are expensed as these costs are incwred, Maintenance and enhancement costs (including those costs in the post-
implementation stages) are typically expensed as mncurred, unless such costs relate to substantial upgrades and enhancements to
the website or software resulting in added functionality, in which case the costs are capitalized.

Tmpairment of Long-Lived Assets

Intangible assets with definite lives and other long-lived assets are carried at cost and are amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of three to five years, The Company periodically reviews the carrying value of long-lived
assets or asset groups. including property and equipment, to be used in operations whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the camying amount of the assets or asset growps might not be recoverable.

Factors that would necessitate an impairment assessment include a significant adverse change in the extent or manner
in which an asset is used, a significant adverse changze in legal factors or the business climate that could affect the value of the
asset group. or a significant decline in the observable market value of an asset group, among others. If such facts indicate a
potential impairment, the recoverability of the asset group is assessed by determining whether the canying value of the asset
group exceeds the sum of the projected undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the
asset group over the remaining economic life of the asset group. If the carrying amount of the asset group is greater than the
expected undiscounted cash flows to be generated by such asset group, including its ultimate disposition, an impainnent
adjustment is to be recognized. Such adjustment is measured by the amount that the camying value of such asset gronps exceeds
their fair value. The Company generally measures fair value by considering sale prices for similar assets or by discounting
estimated future cash flows using an appropriate discount rate. Considerable management judgmient is necessary to estimate the
fair value of asset groups. Accordingly, actual results could vary significantly from such estimates, Asset groups to be disposed
of are carmied at the lower of their financial statement camrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. The Company recorded a
$16.8 million impaiment loss of its mtangible assets with definite hives during the year ended December 31, 2014 due to an
anticipated decline in Skyhook's operations as a result of the loss of one of Skyhook's significant customers. as discussed in note
2. There was no indication of impairment of long-lived assats during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,

Nonconireiling Interesis

Noncontrolling interest relares to the equity ownership interest in one of TruePosition’s consolidated companies that it
did not wholly own until 2012, The Company reports nonconrolling interests of consolidated companies within shareholders’
equity in the balance sheet and the amount of net income attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest is presented
in the statements of operations. Also. changes in ownership interests in consolidated companies in which the Company matntains
a controlling interest are recorded in equity.

Foreign Currency Transiation and Transaction Gains and Losses

The functional currency of the Company is the United States (“U.5.") dollar. Transactions denominated in cumrencies
other than the functional cumrency are recorded based on exchange rates at the time such transactions anse. Subsequent changes
i exchange rates result in transaction gams and losses which are reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive eamings {loss) as unrealized (based on the applicable period end exchange rate) or realized upon
settlement of the transactions.
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Revenue Recognition

TruePosition eams revenue from the sale of hardware and hicensing of software required to generate location records for
wireless phones and other wireless devices on a cellular network and from the design, mstallation, testing. and commussioning of
such hardware and software. In addition, TruePosition eamns software maintenance revenue through the provision of ongoing
technical and software support.

TrePosition’s tangible products contain software components and non-software components that function together to
deliver the tangible products’ essential functionality, Under the applicable accounting gnidance, amrangements for such products
are excluded from the scope of software revenue recognition guidance and are subject to the guidance for multiple-element
arrangements. Accordingly, for multiple-element arrangements entered mto or matenially modified on or after January 1, 2011,
the overall arrangement fee is allocated to each element (both delivered and undelivered items) based on their relative selling
prices, regardless of whether those selling prices ave evidenced by vendor specific objective evidence (“VSOE™) or third-party
evidence of selling price or are based on the entity’s estimated selling price. The associated revenue for each element is recognized
upon delivery assuming all other criteria for revenue recognition are met.

For arrangements which do not qualify for treatment under the new guidance, TruePosition continues to account for such
arrangements consistent with the guidance for software revenue recognition. Under those policies, for revenue denved from
multiple-element arrangements, 1f VSOE exists for each of the elements of the arrangement at the outset, the Company allocates
the revenue to the various elements for recognition upon delivery of each element. If not, the revenue is deferved until the earlier
of establishing sufficient VSOE for allocating revenue for recognition or delivery of all of the elements. If a multiple-element
arrangement includes posi-contract customer support (commonly referred to as maintenance). VSOE must exist for the
maintenance in order to allocate revenue to all of the elements of the arrangement. If VSOE does not exist for the maintenance.
revenue for the entire arrangement is recognized ratably over the contractual or expected term of the maintenance amrangement.

Direct costs related to multiple-glement arrangements are deferred and recognized as the related revenne is recognized.
Direct costs include installation services, hardware, and software costs.

TruePosition’s multiple-element arrangement with its significant customer also contemplates usage-based transaction
fees for certain commercial uses of TruePosition s hardware and software. To date, no transaction fees have been eamed,

TruePosition also provides training. technical. and repair services under its multiple-element avangements, Revenue is
recognized upon delivery of the services,

In May 2014, the FASB issued new accounting guidance on revenue from contracts with customers. The new guidance
requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers, The updated guidance will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in GAAP when it becomes
effective and permits the use of either a retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. This guidance is effective for fiscal
years, and interim perieds within those fiscal vears, beginning after December 15, 2016, The Company is cwrrently evaluating
the effect that the new standard may have on its revenue recognition and has not yet selected a transition method but does not
believe the standard will significantly affect its financial statements and related disclosures.

Research and Development Cosis
Research and development costs are expensed as mewrred.
Product Warraniy
TruePosition generally provides a warranty on its produet for a tenm of one year. The acerual for warranty costs 1s

provided at the time of client acceptance using management’s estimates, which are based upon assumptions about future events.
In addition, the recorded accrual is adjusted for specifically identified warranty exposures if inforeseen techuical preblems arise.
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The Company’s accrued warranty liability was 52 thousand and $222 thousand as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively,
and s incleded in accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets,

Deferred Revenwe and Deferred Costs

Deferred revenue represents billings in excess of revenue previously recognized. Deferred costs represent direct costs
related to installation services, hardware, and software, which. to the extent not previously recognized, are recognized as the
related revenue is recognized. Deferred revenue, long-term portion, includes $35.5 million of payments recerved from a customer
which were attributed to prepaid transaction fees. As of December 31, 2014, no fees had been eamed,

Srock -Based Compensation

As more fully deseribed i note 11, Libenty has granted to its directors, emiployees and employees of cenain of its
subsidiaries options, restncted stock and stock apprecianion rights (“SARs") to purchase shares of Liberty common stock
(collectively, “Awards™). Liberty meastires the cost of employee services recerved in exchange for an Award of equity instruments
(such as stock options and restricted stock) based on the grant-date fair value of the Award, and recognizes that cost over the
period during which the employee is required to provide service (usually the vesting period of the Award). Liberty measures the
cost of emplovee services received in exchange for an Award of liability instroments (such as stock appreciation rights that will
be settled in cash) based on the current fair value of the Award, and remeasures the fair value of the Award at each reporting date.
Certain owtstanding awards of Liberty were assumed by Liberty Broadband at the time of the Broadband Spin-Off,

Additionally. TruePosition and Skyhook each sponsor a long-term incentive plan (“LTIF™) which provide for the
granting of phantom stock units (“PSUs™), and phantom stock appreciation nghts (“PARs") to employees, directors. and
consultants of TruePosition and Skyhook, respectively. TruePosition also sponsors a Stock Incentive Plan (“SIP™), which provides
for the granting of stock options to employees, directors, and consultants of TruePosition, TruePosition measures the cost of
emplayee services received m exchange for awards of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award and
recognizes that cost ratably over the period during which the employee is required to provide service (usually the vesting period
of the award). TruePosition measures the cost of employee services received in exchange for awards of liability instruments (such
as PSUs and PARs that will be settled in cash) based on the current fair value of the award, and remeasures the fair value of the
award at each reporting date. The consolidated statements of operations includes stock-based compensation related to
TrePosition awards.

Included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations are the following amounts of stock-based
compensation for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 {amounts in thousands):

December 31,
2014 2013 012
Op AT EEPEILE . ¢ a e iis e vimen snnsa sabossivnrngssmnie s 1 2 (398)
Selling, general and administrative , . .........oc0ceiaean.s 832 751 (1.484)
Research and development .. ........c.ociviviiiiniiiananas 166 243 (501)
s 999 996 (2.383)

Tacome Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and lability method. Deferved tax assets and hiabilinies are
recognized for the future tax consequences antributable to differences between the financial statement carrving value amounts and
income tax bases of assets and liabilities and the expected benefits of unilizing net operating loss and rax credit carryforwards.
The deferred tax assets and liabilities are caleulated using enacted tax rates in effect for each taxing jurisdiction in which the
Company operates for the vear in which those temporary differences are expected 1o be recovered or sentled. Net deferred rax
assets are then reduced by a valuation allowance if the Company believes it more likely than not thar such net deferved tax assets
will not be realized. We consider all relevant factors when assessing the likelihood of future realization of our deferred tax assets,
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including our recent eamings experience by junisdiction, expectations of future taxable income, and the canyforward periods
available to us for tax reporting purposes, as well as assessing available tax planming strategies. The effect on deferred tax assets
and liabilities of an enacted change in tax rates 1s recogmzed i meome 1 the penod that mcludes the enactment date. Due to
mherent complexities arsing from the nature of our businesses, future changes in meome tax law, tax shanng agreements or
variances berween our actual and anticipated operating results, we make certain judgments and estimates, Therefore. actual
income taxes could materially vary from these estimates,

When the tax law requires interest to be paid on an underpayment of income taxes, the Company recognizes mterest
expense from the first period the interest would begin accruing according to the relevant tax law. Such interest expense is included
in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Any acemal of penalties related to underpayment
of income taxes on uncertain tax positions is included in other income (expense) in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations.

We recognize in our consolidated financial statements the impact of a tax position, if that position 15 more hkely than
not to be sustamed upon an examination, based on the technical ments of the position.

Certain Risks and Concentrations

The TruePosition business is subject to certain risks and concentrations including dependence on refationships with its
customers. TrmePosition has one significant customer, the loss of which would have a material adverse effect on TruePosition’s
business. For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, this customer accounted for 83%. 85% and 93%. respectively,
of TruePosition's total revenue,

Coniingeni Liabilities

Periodically, we review the stams of all signaficant ountstanding matters to assess any potential financial exposure. When
(1) it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incwred and (i) the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated, we record the estimated loss in our consolidated statements of operations. We provide disclosure in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements for loss contingencies that do not meet both these conditions if there is a reasonable possibility that
a loss may have been incuured that would be material to the financial statements. Significant judgment is required to determine the
probability that a liability has been incwred and whether such liability is reasonably estimable, We base accruals made on the best
information available at the time which can be highly subjective. The final outcome of these matters could vary significantly from
the amounts mcluded m the accompanying consohidated financial statements.

Comprefrensive Earnings (Loss)

Comprehensive eamings (loss) consists of net income (loss), eomulative foreign currency translation adjustments,
unrealized zains and losses on available-for-sale securities, net of tax and the Company’s share of the comprehensive eamings
(loss) of onr equity method affiliate.

Euarnings per Share (EPS)
Basic earnings (loss) per common share (“EPS") 1s computed by dividing net eamings (loss) by the weighted average

number of conunon shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS presents the dilutive effect en a per share basis of potential
common shares as if they had been converted at the beginning of the pertods presented.
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The Company issued 85,761,332 conunon shares, which is the ageregate number of shares of Series A, Series B and
Series C common stock outstanding upon the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off on November 4. 2014. Additnonally, as part
of the recapitalization, Liberty Broadband distnbuted subsenption rights, which were priced at a discount to the market value, to
all holders of Liberty Broadband conmon stock (see further discussion in note 10). The rights offering. because of the discount,
is considered a stock dividend which requires retroactive treatment for prior periods for the weighted average shares owstanding
based on a factor applied determined by the fair value per share immediately prior to the nglts exercise and the theoretical fair
value after the rights exercise. The number of shares issued upon completion of the Broadband Spin-Off. adjusted for the rights
factor, was used to determine both basic and diluted eamings (loss) per share for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
and for the peniod from January 1, 2014 through the date of the Broadband Spin-Off, as no Company equity awards were
outstanding prior to the Broadband Spin-Off. Basic earnings (loss) per share subsequent to the Broadband Spm-Off was computed
using the weighted average number of shares outstanding (*“WASO™) from the date of the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off
through December 31, 2014, adjusted for the rights factor. Dilured earnings per share subsequent to the Broadband Spin-Off was
computed using the WASO from the date of the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off through December 31, 2014, adjusted for
the rights factor and potentially dilutive equity awards outstanding during the same period.

Years ended December 31
2014 2013 2011
number of shares in thansands
BagicWABO ... .ivviviiinnnnniiniins 22,143 88,343 88,343
Potentially dilutive shares . 630 — —
Diluted WASO . ... ....ooiiiii 88,773 88,343 88,343

Excluded from diluted EPS for the vear ended December 31, 2014 are approximately 17 thousand potential common
shares because their inclusion would be anti-dilutive,

Reclasses and adiustnients
Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified for comparability with the current year presentation,

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting peniod. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company
considers (1) application of the equity method of accounting for its affiliates, (it) fair value of non-financial instruments, (i) fair
value of financial instruments, (iv) revenue recognition, and (v) accoumting for income taxes 1o be its most significant estimates.

(4)  Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value

For assets and liabilities required to be reported at fair value, GAAP provides a hierarchy that prioritizes inputs to
valuation technigques used to measure fair value into three broad levels. Level | inputs are quoted market prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are
inputs, other than quoted market prices included within Level 1. that are observable for the asset or liability. either directly or
indirectly. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The Company does not have any recuring assets or
liabilities measured at fair value that would be considered Level 3.
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The Company's assets and liabilities measured at fair value are as follows:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Qrvated prices Significant Quated prices Significant
im active ather in active wther
markets for observable markets far abwervable
wlentical ascets inpits identical aswets Tifiuts
Description Tatal (Level 1) (Lovel 2) Tatal (Level 1) (Level 2)
amannts in thausands
Cash and cash equivalents . . $ 36,002 36,002 — — — —
Short-term marketable
SECUNTHES . . o ovvu v nianns s 9,001 9,001 — — — —_—
Available-for-sale secunities., $ 360,762 360,762 —_ 326,700 326,700 -_—
Charter warmmants .. _....... 5 — - — 97.847 — 97,847
Time Warner Cable written
call options .. . .. N § (75.356) — (75.356) (54.600) — (54.600)

The fair value of Level 2 derivative assets were obtained from pricing sources for identical or comparable instraments,
rather than direct observations of quoted prices in active markets. The fair value of Level 2 denvative liabilities were derived
from a Black-Scholes model using observable market data as the significant inputs. The inputs used in the mode] during the
pertod outstanding (exelusive of the applicable trading price of Time Warner Cable stock and the strike prices associated with the
call options) were as follows:

Range
Valktdiny oS St s i RE TG 11.7% — 29.1 %
Inferest sabe S o ol v i i 0.23% — 0.27 %
Dividend-sdeld: o soosianeniiiiataa 0% — 1.71 %

Other Financial Instruments

Other financial instruments not measured ar fair value on a recurring basis include irade receivables, wade payables,
accrued and other cumrent liabilities. The carrying amount approximares fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments
as reported on our consolidated balance sheets.

Realized and Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Financial Instormenrs

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on financial instruments are comprised of changes in the fair value of the
following:

Years ended December 31,
014 013 012
{amannts in thansands)
Charter warranis. _ ... ............. e P e $ 32,782 38,234 —_
Time Wamer Cable investment and written call options . .. 18,407 59,626 57,582

3 51.189 97.860 57.582
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(5)  Investments in Available-for-Sale Securities

All marketable equity and debt secunties held by the Company are classified as available-for-sale (“AFS") and are
carried at fair value generally based on quoted market prices. GAAP permits entities to choose to measure many financial
instruments, such as AFS securnities, and certain other items at fair value and to recognize the changes m fair value of such
instruments in the entity’s statements of opetations, The Company has elected to account for those of its AFS securities which it
considers to be nonstrategic (“Fair Value Option Securities™) at fair value. Accordingly, changes in the fair value of Fair Value
Option Securities, as determined by quoted market prices, are reported in realized and unrealized gains (losses) on financial
instruments in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Investments in AFS securities, including Fair Value Option Securities separately aggregated, are sununanzed as follows:

December 11, December 31,
014 013
amounts in thowsands

Fair Value Option Securities

Time Warner Cable. . .. covvivinivriniiiinnnsiinaesissiannaens 5 359615 320452
Other equity SECUATES . . . . oo vue vt ettt et i ie et e e i e 1.147 6.248
Total Investments in available-for-sale securities . .. ....... ... ... ... § 360.762 326.700

Unrealized Holding Gains and Losses

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the gross unrealized holding gains related to investment in AFS securities were
$982 thousand and $5.9 mullion, respectively. There were no gross unrealized holding losses related to investment m AFS
securities for the pertods presented.

(6}  Investments in Affiliates Aceounted for Using the Equity Method

In May 2013, Liberty completed a mansaction with investment funds managed by, or affiliated with, Apollo
Managemem, Oakiree Capital Management and Crestview Partners to acquire approximately 26.9 million shares of common
stock and approximately 1.1 million warrants i Charter for approximately $2.6 billion. which represented an approximate 27%
beneficial ownership (including the warmrants on an as if converted basis) in Charter at the time of purchase and a price per share
of $95.50. Liberty funded the purchase with a combination of cash of approximately $1.2 billion on hand and new margin loan
arrangements on approximately 203 nullion Charter conunon shares, approximately 720 million SIRIUS XM common shares,
approximately 8.1 million Live Nation conunon shaves and a portion of Liberty's available for sale securities, meluding shares
of Time Warner Cable. The margin loan secured by the Charter and Time Warmer Cable shares was repaid and the collateral was
released prior to completion of the Broadband Spin-Off. Liberty allocated the purchase price between the shares of common stock
and the warrants acquired in the transaction by determining the fair value of the publicly traded warrants and allocating the
remaining balance to the shares acquired, which resulted in an excess basis in the investment of $2,532.3 million. The investment
in Charter is accounted for as an equity method affiliate based on the ownership interest obtained and the board seats held by
individuals appointed by Liberty,

During May 2014, Liberty purchased 897 thousand Charter shares for approximately $124.5 million, During November
2014, subsequent to the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off, Liberty Broadband borrowed $52 million to fund the exercise of
all of the Company’s outstanding Charter warrants (see note 8). The exercise of the Charter warrants resulted in a non-cash
investing addition of $130.6 million to the investments in affiliates, accounted for using the equity methed line item and a $130.6
million non-cash investing reduction to the derivative instruments line item within the consolidated balance sheets.
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Charter Communications, fnc.
Surnmarized financial mformation for Charter 15 as follows:

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, December 31,
2014 nla
amounts iy millions

EITang NAREBR - vt i i e S R B s 371 31z
Property and equipment, net £,373 7981
Goodwill........00vvvvncninnn 1,168 1.177
Intangible assets. . .......... ... 7111 7.398
13 11T R P 7.527 417
Total assels . .o .o viisirirrases 5 24,550 17.295
Current liabilities . .. ........... 3 1.635 1.467
Deferred income taxes. ......... 1,674 1.431
Long-teven debt ..o oo. i 21,023 14,181
Otherlabilities .. ... oo e 72 65
By s i S B S e S S S T 146 151
Total liabilities amd equaty. .. ... oo 3 24,550 17.295

Wears ended December 31,

014 13
aounts in millions
TRBNTBIIENR a0 B L B 5 5 9,108 8,155

Cost and expenses:
Operating ¢osts and expenses {exclndu:g depcrecmrmn and
amortization) . . i 5973 5.345

Depreciation and ﬂmomzauon 2,102 1.854
Other operating expenses. net 62 47
8.137 7,246

OPErating IEOTINE. | o vaiii vaie e s i a4 lass oo s o 971 Q09
Interest expense , . @11 (846)
Loss on exrmgulshmmt 0fdebt —_ (123}

Other income (expense). net. (7) 11
Income tax (expénse) 'b:lleﬁl: i (236) (120%
Nt earmings (J088). . o ov et iaiaiaans 5 (183) (169)

As of December 31, 2014, the carrying value of Liberty Broadband's ownership in Charter was approximately
$2,499 million. The market value of Liberty Broadband’s ownership in Charter as of December 31, 2014 was approximately
$4,805 million, which represented an approximate ownership of 26% of the outstanding equity of Charter as of that date.

During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, there were $87.2 million and $92.9 million of dilution losses,

respectively, in the Company’s mvestment in Charter due to wanant and stock option exercises by third parties below Liberty
Broadband's book basis per share.
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During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company recorded $3.2 million and $3.7 million. respectively,
of its share of Charter’s other comprehensive eamings, net of income taxes. Charter records gains and losses related to the fair
value of its interest rate swap agreements which qualify as hedging activities in other comprehensive income. The pre-tax portion
of Liberty Broadband’s share of Charter’s other comprehensive earnings was §5.2 million and $6.0 million for the vears ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively,

Due to the amortization of amortizable assets acquired and losses due to warrant and stock option exercises at Charter
{as previously discussed), the excess basis has decreased to $2.461.3 million as of December 31, 2014. Such amount has been

allocated within memo accounts used for equity method accounting purposes as follows {amounts in millions):

Property and equipImenit. . .. ..o vuviven s dires s e e 3 4339

Customer relationships . . ............... 664, 1
Franchise fees L4514
Teadeniarks. o oo e e e 362
Goodnll. vy e e e e S e e e 9601
Deferved income tax Hability .. ... ..ot i, 862.9)

b 24613

Upen acquisition, the Company ascribed remaining useful lives of 7 years and 13 years to property and equipment and
customer relationships, respectively. and indefinite lives to franchise fees. trademarks and goodwill. Ouistanding debt is
amortized over the contractual period using the effective interest rate method. Included in our share of losses from Charter of
$127.6 million and $76.1 million for the vears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. are £81.2 million and
%443 malhon, respectively, of losses, net of taxes. due to the amortization of the excess basis of our mvestment in Charter related
to debt and intangible assets with identifiable useful lives,

(7} Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Changes in the camrying amount of TruePosition goodwill 1s as follows (amounts in thousands):

Babanceat Jamiaaim Ty D00 b i s S e o SRR e R §  20.669
Balance at December 31,2013 .. ......... 20.665
Acquisitions (1)....oooiiiiiaiiia.. 24,931
Tmpairments (2). .. ... .....ooiiainan. (18.434)
Balance st Decamiber 312004 sy s i s e e SR S S SR e $ 27,166

(1) As discussed in note 2, TruePosition acquired Skyhook on February 14, 2014,

(2) As discussed in note 2. as a result to the loss of one of Skyhoeok’s significant customers in November 2014, the Company
performed a Step 2 impainuent test to determine the fair value of Skyhook. The fair value of Skyhook, including the related
intangibles and goodwill, was determined using Skyhook's projections of future operating performance and applying a
combination of market nvultiples (market approach) and discounted cash flow (income approach) caleulations (Level 3). As
of December 31, 2014 accumulated goodwill impairment losses for TruePosition was $18.4 million.

Goodwill, attributable to the Company's acquisitions of TruePosition and Skyhook. primarily relates to assembled
warkforces, non-contractual velationships and other intangibles that do not qualify for separate recognition. The Company does
not have any other significant indefinite lived intangible assets.
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Intangible assets subject to amortization are comprised of the following (amounts in thousands):

Drecember 11, 2014 December 31, 2013
Gross Canrving Accumulated Net Carrving Gross Carrving Accumnlated Net Carrving
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Ammount
Acquired patents . ... ...... N 8,822 (5.801) 3.021 3110 (3,085) 25
Trademiarks ... oivoinvinns 2,788 (788) 2,000 — - =
Capnalized software . ... .. 10,991 (10.597) 394 10.694 (10.290) 404
Custonter relationships . . . .. 10.212 (2.712) 7.500 — — —
3 32,813 (19.898) 12.915 13.804 (13.375) 426

TruePosition’s patents are amortized straight-line over three yvears. TruePosition's capitalized software intangible assets
are amortized straight-line over three to five years. TmePosition's customer relationships and tradename are amortized straight-
line over five years. Amortization expense was $6.5 million, $1.4 million and $2.3 million for each of the years ended
December 31. 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The estimated future amortization expense for the next five years related to intangible assets with definite lives as of
December 31, 2014 is as follows (amounts m thousands):

I R e L L S P B 5 3265
3170
3,063
3.035

(8) Debt

Om October 30, 2014, in connection with and prior to the effectiveness of the Broadband Spin-Off, a wholly-owned
special purpose subsidiary of the Company ("BroadbandSPV™) entered into rwo margin loan agreements (the "Margin Loan
Agreements”) with each of the lenders party thereto. The Margin Loan Agreements permit BroadbandSPV, subject to certain
funding conditions. to bomow term loans up to an aggregate principal amount equal to $400 million (the "Margin Loans"), of
which BroadbandSPV borrowed $320 million on October 31, 2014 and had $80 million available to be drawn immediately
following the Broadband Spin-Off. During November 2014, subsequent to the Broadband Spin-Off, Liberty Broadband bormowed
an additional $52 million to fund the exercise of the Charter wamrants. As of December 31, 2014, Liberty Broadband had $372.0
muillion ourstanding under the Margin Loan Agreements, with an additional $28.0 nulhion available to be drawn. 5300 nullion of
the amount borrowed pursuant to the Margin Loan Agreements (less certamn expenses incurred in connection with the Margin
Loans) was distributed to Liberty prior to the Broadband Spin-Off. The muturity date of the Margin Loans is October 30, 2017.
Borrowings under the Margin Loan Agreements bear interest at the three-month LIBOR rate plus 1.55%. Interest is payable
quarterly in arrears beginning on December 31, 2014. The Margin Loan Agresments contain various affirmative and negative
covenants that restrict the activities of BroadbandSPV. The Margin Loan Agreements do not include any financial covenants.
The Margin Loan Agreements also contain certain restrictions related to additional indebtedness,

BroadbandSPV's obligations under the Margin Loan Agreements are guaranteed by the Company. In addition,
BroadbandSPV's obligations are secured by first priority liens on a portion of the Company’s ownership interest in Charter,
sufficient for Broadband SPV to meet its loan to value requirement under the Margin Loan Agreements. Each agreement contains
language that indicates that Liberty Broadband, as borrower and transferor of underlying shares as collateral. has the right to
exercise all voting. consensual and other powers of ownership peraining to the transferved shares for all purposes, provided thar
Liberty Broadband agrees that it will not vote the shares in any manner that would reasonably be expected to give nse to transfer
or other certain restrictions, Similarly. the loan agreements indicate that no lender party shall have any voting rights with respect
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to the shares transferred, except to the extent that a lender party buys any shares in a sale or other disposition made pursnant to
the terms of the loan agreements. As of December 31, 2014, 7.0 nullion shares of Charter with a value of $1.2 billion were
pledged as collateral pursuant to the Margin Loans.

TruePosition had a $4 million line of credit, which expired on December 25, 2013, covening standby letters of credit
issued for the benefit of TruePosition. Pursuant to the terms of the line of credit, upon its expiration, any issued and outstanding
letters of credit remain in effect through the remainder of their respective terms. $634 thousand in letters of credit were outstanding
and those lenters of credit remain outstanding as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, Leners of credit issued under the line of eredit
prior 1o its expiration remain collateralized by a cash deposit maintained by the bank (note 3), which will remain in place during
the remaining terms of the outstanding letters of credit.

The line of credit bore interest at the rate of four-tenths of 1% per annum on the balance available for issuance of letters
of credit. Letters of credit issued under the line of credit bore interest at 2.5% through March 2012, and 1.75% thereafter. All
interest was payable quarterly. Interest expense related to the line of credit was not significant for the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013, or 2012,

(%) Income Taxes

Liberty Broadband. as consolidated. was included in the federal consolidated income tax return of Liberty through
MNovember 4. 2014. Liberty Broadband will file a separate federal consolidated income tax return for the period November 5,
2014 through December 31, 2014, The tax provision included in these financial statements has been prepared on a stand-alone
basis, as if Liberty Broadband was not part of the consolidated Liberty group. Charter and Time Wamer Cable are not included
in the Liberty Broadband consolidated group tax retum as Liberty Broadband owns less than 80% of both companies. A portion
of the income taxes allocated to Liberty Broadband by Liberty were treated as an equity contribution by Liberty upon completion
of the Broadband Spin-Off, The remaining amount allocated to Liberty Broadband by Liberty prior to the completion of the
Broadband Spin-Off will be senled in 2015 through the Company’s tax sharing agreement with Liberty.

Income tax benefit (expense) consists of:

Years ended Decemnber 31,
2014 2013 2011
amounts in thowsands
Current:
TR o v R S A A b 510 (5.124) (5.778)
Smteand local ... ... . e e 473 (3.102) (1.213)
983 (8.226) (6.991)
Deferred:
FReral . . v e vt s v v om ity s €597 T i g 62.014 26,735 {19.537)
Stateand local ... ..o e e 4,689 4,189 (328)
66,703 30.924 (19.865)
Income tax benefir (expense) ...l 5 67.686 22,698 (26.856)
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Income tax benefit (expense) differs from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 35%
as a result of the following:

Years endeid December 31,
014 013 1012
amounts in thonsands

Compitted expected tax benefit (expense). ...........oooon. 5 T0.802 22,549 {24.766)
Stare and local taxes. net of federal income taxes. . ... ... ... 2.657 2462 (642)
Foreign taxes, net of foreign tax erediv ... —_ (751) 751
Change in valuation allowance.............. 2.154) (986) (3.168)
Dividends received deduction. ....... e g19 1.506 973
Chanige M BAXFRIE o vhiinaes e hsansasiorraniabrraisns 998}  (1.756) —
Change 1 entify MX StaRIS . ooy cvdar s s snds anin ed — — 159
Impairment of mtangible assets not deductible for tax purposes . (6.452) — —_
Loss on liquidation of subsidiary 3.082 — (3)
i R LI S ; {70} (326) {160}

Income tax {expense) benefit. . ..........coiiniiiiiiae S 67.686 22,698 (26.856)

For the year ended December 31, 2014 the significant reconciling items, as noted in the table above, are the result of the
impatrment te Goodwill at Skyhook Wireless, Ine. and a tax loss from the liquidation of a consolidated subsidiary at True Position.

Duwring 2013, Liberty Broadband changed its estimate of the effective tax rate used to measure its net deferred tax
liabilities, based on expected changes to the Company’s state apportionment factors due to the Company’s investment in Charter
Communications. The rate change required an adjustment to deferved taxes at the parent level.

During 2012, TruePosition determined that it would not be able to utilize certain state net operating loss carryforwards
before their expiration. As a result, TruePosition recorded a valnation allowance of $2.9 million to offset defemred tax assets
related to these loss camyforwards.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to sigmificant portions of the deferved income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities are presented below:

December 31,
2014 013
amounts in thowsands
Deferved tax assets:
Net operating loss camyforwards. ... .....ovvviiiniiinnes $ 20201 7.946
Accrued stock-based compensation ., ... o 943 870
DIeFarre Peeeih. -y s R R R b T 16,490 15.210
OTBEE L e 6.759 12,540
Total deferred tax assets. . ....... 44,393 36,566
Less: valuation allowance ... .. .. F TR R e (8.240) (6.086)
Net deferred tax assets. ... ... ....iiiiiiiiiiiaiiiiiis 36,153 30,480
Deferved tax liabilities:
e 11 (1.252) (36,980)
Intangible assets .. .............. (4.039) —_
T i e A e A T U S B (40} (240)
Total deferred tax Habilities. ... o.ovoerieee e (5.331) (37.220)
MWet deferved tax asset (lability) .. .........000vvnnn &  30.822 (6.7400)
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The Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as
follows:

Diecember 31,
2014 013
amounts in thousands
Current deferred tax asset .. .. ..ooviinn e iieniiiniiinaenas 5 11,282 17,598
Noncuwrrent deferred tax asset. .. ...oovv e viii i i i 19,540 —
Noncwrent deferred tax liability .. ... ... — (24.338)
5 30822 (6.740)

The Company's valuation allowance increased $2.2 million in 2014, which affected tax expense during the vear ended
December 31, 2014,

At December 31, 2014, Liberty Broadband had federal and state ner operating losses {on a tax effected basis) and tax
credit carryforwards for income tax purposes aggregating approximately $20.2 million. These net operating losses and credit
cammyforwards are expected to be utilized prior to expiration, except for $8.2 million which based on current projections, may
expire unused. The camyforwands that are expected to be utilized will begin to expire in 2022,

In addition, Liberry Broadband currently has $2.0 million (on a tax effected basis) of excess share-based compensation
deductions resulting in an approximate gross operating loss camryforward on its tax return of $5.7 million. Excess tax
compensation benefits are recorded off balance sheet until the excess tax benefit is realized through a reduction of taxes payable.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had not recorded tax reserves related to unrecogmzed tax benefits for uncertain
fax positions.

As of December 31, 2014, Liberty's 2002 through 2010 tax vears are closed for federal income tax purposes, and the
IRS has completed its exammation of Liberty's 2011 through 2013 tax years. The tax loss canryforwards from the 2011 through
2013 tax years are still subject to adjustment, Liberty’s 2014 tax year is being examined currently as part of the IRS's Compliance
Assurance Process “CAP” program. As discussed earlier. because Liberty Broadband's ownership of Charter Communications
and Time Warner Cable is less than the required 80%, these companies are not consolidated with Liberty Broadband for federal
ICONIE WX PUIPOSES.

(10)  Stockholders’ Equity

In the Broadband Spin-Off, record holders of Liberty Series A, Series B and Series C common stock received one-fourth
of a share of the corresponding series of Liberty Broadband common stock for each share of Liberty conunon stock held by them
as of 5:00 p.m.. New York City Time, on October 29, 2014 (the record date) for the Broadband Spin-Off, with cash paid in lieu
of fractional shares. This resulted in the issuance of an aggregate 85,761,332 shares of Series A, Series B and Series C common
stock.

In addition, following the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off, on December 10, 2014, stockholders received a
subscription right to acquire one share of Series C Liberty Broadband commeon stock for every five shares of Liberty Broadband
comumon stock they held as of the rights record date at a per share subscription price of $40.36, which was a 20% discount to the
20-trading day volume weighted average trading price of the Senes C Liberty Broadband conumon stock following the completion
of the Broadband Spin-Off. The nights offening was fully subscribed on Janvary 9. 2015, with 17.277.224 shares of Series C
common stock issned to those rightsholders exercising basic and, as applicable, oversubsenption privileges. The subscription
rights were issned to raise capital for general corporate purposes of Liberty Broadband
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FPreferved Stock

Liberty Broadband's preferred stock is issuable. from time to time, with such designations. preferences and relative
participating, optional or other rights, qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, as shall be stated and expressed in a
resohution or resolutions providing for the issue of such preferred stock adopted by Liberty Broadband's board of directors, As
of December 31, 2014, no shares of preferred stock were issued.

Contmon Stock

Liberty Broadband's Series A common stock has one vote per share, Liberty Broadband's Series B common stock has ten
votes per share and Liberty Broadband’s Series C ¢ommmon stock has no votes per share. Each share of the Series B common
stock 15 exchangeable at the option of the holder for one share of Series A common stock. All series of our common stock
participate on an equal basis with respect to dividends and distnbutions,

As of December 31, 2014, there were 507 thousand shares of Series A and 3.1 rmllion shares of Series C common stock
reserved for issuance under exercise privileges of outstanding stock oprions. Additionally. as of December 31, 2014, there were
17.3 million shares of Series C common stock reserved for issuance pursuant to the rights offering.

(11) Stock-Based Compensation
Liberty Broadband - Tncentive Plans

In connection with the Broadband Spin-Off, awards with respect to Liberty Media's Series A and Series C common
stock were converted to awards with respect to Liberty Broadband's Series A and Series C common stock. respectively, pursuant
to the Liberty Broadband Corporation Transitional Stock Adjustment Plan (the “Transitional Plan™). Fellowing the Broadband
Spin-Off, the Transitional Plan governs the terms and conditions of such stock options and stock appreciation rights (“SARs")
(collectively, “Awards™), in respect of a maximum of 2.5 million shares of Liberty Broadband common stock, to purchase shares
of Series A and Series C common stock. No additional grants may be made pursuant to the Transitional Plan.

Pursuant to the Liberty Broadband 2014 Ommnibus Incentive Plan (the “2014 Plan™). as amended. the Company may
grant Awards to be made in respect of a maximum of 8.4 nullion shares of Liberty Broadband commen stock. Awards generally
vest over 4-5 years and have a term of 7-10 vears. Liberty issues new shares wpon exercise of equity awards.

In connection with the Broadband Spin-Off, the holder of an outstanding option to purchase shares of Liberty common
stock on the record date (an onginal Liberty option) recerved an option fo purchase shares of the comresponding series of our
Liberty Broadband conunon stock and an adjustment to the exercise price and number of shares subject to the oniginal Liberty
option (as o adjusted. an adjusted Liberty option). The exercise prices of and number of shares subject to the new Liberty
Broadband option and the related adjusted Liberty option were determined based on (1) the exercise price and number of shares
subject 1o the original Liberty option, (2) the distribution ratio of 0.25, (3) the pre Broadband Spin-Off trading price of Liberty
common stock and (4) the relative post-Broadband Spin-Off trading prices of Liberty common stock and Liberty Broadband
common stock, such that the pre-Broadband Spin-Off intrinsic value of the onginal Liberty option was allocated between the
new Liberty Broadband option and the adjusted Liberty option. Followmg the Broadband Spin-Off, employees of Liberty hald
Awards in both Liberty commeon stock and Liberty Broadband commeon stock. The compensation expense relating to employees
of Liberty is recorded at Liberty. Therefore, compensation expense related to options resulting from the Broadband Spin-Off will
not be recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial statements,

Except as described above, all other tetms of an adjusted Liberty option and a new Liberty Broadband option (including,
for example, the vesting tenms thereof) are in all matenal respects, the same as those of the comesponding original Liberty option.
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Liberty Broadband ~ Grants of Stock Opiions

During the year ended December 31. 2014, Liberty Broadband granted 1.5 million options in Series C common stock with
a weighted average grant-date fair value of $16.80 1o the CEOQ of Liberty Broadband in connection with a new employment
agreement at Liberty: of those options, one half vest on December 17, 2018 and the other half vest on December 17, 2019. The
remaining seven thonsand options granted during the vear ended December 31. 2014 have a weighted average grant-date fair value
of $13.62 and cliff vest over a 2 year vesting period.

The Company has calculated the grant-date fair value for all of its equity classified awards and any subsequent
remeasurement of its liability classified awards using the Black-Scholes Model. The Company estimates the expected term of the
Awards based on historical exercise and forfeihure data. For grants made in 2014, the range of expected terms was 5.1 to 7.3 years.
Sice Liberty Broadband common stock has not traded on the stock market for a significant length of time, the volatility used in the
calculation for Awards is based on the historical volatility of Charter Commimmications conunon stock and the implied volatlity of
publicly traded Charter Communications options; as the most significant asset within Liberty Broadband. the volatility of Charter
Communications served as a proxy for the expected volatility of Liberty Broadband. For grants made in 2014, the range of volatilities
was 28.2% 1o 28.5%. The Company uses a zero dividend rate and the risk-free rate for Treasury Bonds with a term similar to that
of the subject option.

Liberty Broadband - Owistanding Awards
The following table presents the number and weighted average exercise price (“WAEP™) of Awards to purchase Liberty

Broadband common stock granted to cerain officers. emplovees and directors of the Company, as well as the weighted average
remaining life and aggregate intrinsic value of the Awards,

Weighted
average
remaining Aggregate
contractual imtrinsic
Seried A WAEP life value
tin thonsands) fin vears) {in mnillions)
Outstanding at January 1, 2004 .. .. ... — ¥ —
Broadband Spin-Off adjustment ... ............ 846 35 3221
— % —
(39) % 32.16
S i A
Outstanding at December 31,2014 ... ... ....... 807 § 22 41 % 14
Exercisable at December 31,2014, .. ... _........ G680 3 31.92 41 % 1z
Weighted
average
remaining Aggregate
contractual intrinsic
Seiies © WAEP lafe valide
(in thousands) {in years) (in millinns)
OQutstanding at January 1, 2004 .. ... .......oo0y — 3 —
Broadband Spin-Off adjustment _ ., 1709 § 3222
Gonted R S R B b R e s 1507 § 48.10
Buerelerd. oot s e e e (79) § 32.50
Forfeited’Cancelled ........o0ociimnvinnnanns — 3 —_
Outstanding at December 31,2004 ., ... _........ 3,137 % 1985 70 % i1
Exercisable at December 31,2014, ... .. ... ..., 1373 & 31.92 41 s 25

The Company had no outstanding Series B options during 2014,
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As of December 31, 2014, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested Liberty Broadband Awards was
approxumately $25 mullion. Such amount will be recogmzed i the Company's consolidated statements of operations over a
weighted average period of approximately 2.9 years.

Liberty Broadband — Exercises
The aggregate intrinsic value of all options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2014 was S1.8 nullion.
Literty Broadband — Restricied Shares

The aggregate fair value of all Series A and Series C restricted shares of Liberty Broadband commeon stock that vested
during the vear ended December 31, 2014 was $172.000.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had approximately 201,000 unvested restricted shares of Series A and Senes C
Liberty Broadband comumon stock held by certain directors, officers and employees of the Company with a weighted average
grant-date fair value of $28.61 per shave.

TruePosition equily incentive plans
Lang-Term Incentive Plans

TruePosition and Skyhook have granted PARs and PSUs to employees, directors, and consultants of TriePosition and
Skyhook, respectively, pursuant to the LTIPs. PAR grants under the LTIPs vest over a four or five-year period. On June 30 of
each of the fiscal years following the second, fourth, sixth, and eighth anniversaries of the date of a grant, 25% of the original
grant is deemed to have been exercised and canceled. Upon such date, the holders of such grants receive the appreciation in the
value of the grant, if any, from the value of the grant on the dare of its issuance. PSUs, unless otherwise indicated, have the same
vesting, exercise, and cancellation provisions as PARs granted under the plan. Certain of the PARs and the majority of the
outstanding PSU grants contain modifications to the standard vesting, exercise and cancellation provisions.

Upon separation from TruePosinion, holders of grants are eligible, assuming all conditions are met under the LTIPs, to
receive the appreciation in value of their vested PAR grants and the value of their vested PSU grants as of the date of their
separation that have not been deemed exercised and canceled,

The following sunumarizes the PAR and PSU activities under the LTIPs during 2014 (in thousands):

Stanid-alone Tandem Stanil-alone Skyhook
PARs PARs P5Us P5Sls PAR:

Outstanding at Jannary 1, 2004 .. ... ... Lin 253 69 218 —

CICAIG e e e i e R 553 —_ — 44 6,260

EXOICISES - . oot e e e (325) (122) (33) (8) —

Forfeiliees. . . .uvvreerieeniieeenannens (463) (80) (21 (93) (2.272)
Outstanding at December 31,2014 ... ... .. 1.076 51 15 161 3988
Fair value of outstanding grants, . ......... — —_ s 203 2135 5 67
Vested fairvalue ... ..ooiiveiiiiiasnas — — 3 203 b1 945 - 10
Weighted average remaining vesting period . 2.7 years 2.9 years 3.4 years

Grants that are exercised and paid and grants that are forfeited, canceled. or otherwise not paid are available for grant
under the LTIPs,

Grants under the LTIPs may be settled in cash, publicly waded stock of the companies or an affiliate of the companies,
or a combination thereof. TruePosition accounts for grants under the LTIPs as liability instruments. Accordingly, TruePosition
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measures the cost of employee services received m exchange for grants based on the current fair value of the grants and records
a liability at the end of each reporting penod equivalent to the vested portion of such current fair value.

TrePosition calculates the grant-date fair value and subsequent remeasurement of its liability classified awards using
the Black-Scholes model. TruePosition estumates the expected term of the awards based on lustorical exercise and forfeiture data.
The expected term for grants made to dunng 2014 ranged from 0.5 - 7.5 years. The volatility used by TruePosition m the Black-
Scholes model for grants made duning 2014 was 30%. TruePosihon uses a zero dividend rate and the nisk-free rate for Treasury
Bonds with a term sinmlar to that of the subject options, which ranged from 0.1% - 2.0% for grants made in 2014.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, $2.1 nullion and $2.2 mullion, respectively, are included in other Liabilities for the
fair value (Level 2) of the Company's LTIP obligations,

Stock Oprion Plan

In October 1995, TruePosition adopted the SIP, which provides for the granting of stock options to employees, directors,
and consultants of TruePosition. Options granted under the SIP may be either Incentive Stock Options (I50s) or Nonqualified
Stock Options (NSOs). ISOs may be granted only to TruePosition employees (includmng officers and directors who are also
employees), NSOs may be granted to employees, directors, and consultants. Options under the SIP may be granted for periods of
up to ten years and generally vest over four or five years, As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, there were no ophions outstanding.

(12) Employee Benefit Plans

At December 31, 2014, TruePosition participated i Liberty's defined-contnbution plan (the “Liberty 401(k) Plan"). The
Liberty 401(k) Plan provides for employees to make contributions by salary reductions to a trust for investment in Liberty
common stock, as well as several mutual funds pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code.

TruePosition and Skyhook employees are eligible for 100% and 50% matching contnbutions by the Company for each
dollar contributed up to 10% and 8% of the employees’ total compensation, respectively. subject to certain linutations. For the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company contributed approximately $1.5 million, $1.6 mullion and
$2.0 million respectively.

(13) Related Pavty Transactions
During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, certamn of TruePosition’s costs and expenses were ¢

to TruePosition by Liberty. The amounts due to (from) Liberty and the activities for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
are summarized as follows (amounts m thousands):

2014 2013

Payable (recervable) at beginming of year . ... .................... § (5953) 2876
Costs and expenses charged by Laberty . ... ... .. ... .. 3913 2,808
Amounts (receivable) due under the tax-sharing arrangement. .. ... .. (4,094) 4,493
Transfer of related party recervable to (from) note recervable ... 5,306 —
Payments to Biberty, . ..oononnsin v i oo (6,399) (16,130)
Amount receivable (due) under the tax-shanng arrangement

transferred to Liberty Broadband ... ... .. .. ... .. ........ 7227 —_—
(Recervable) payableatendofyear. .............oociiin. 8 — (5.953)

Prior to the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off, TruePosition alse had an mtercompany note arrangement with
Liberty under which funds were advanced to Liberty and remutted back to TruePosition as needed. During September 2014,
Laberty renutted back to TruePosition all prinerpal and acerued interest related to this note and the amangement was extingiushed

Fa7



LIBERTY BROADBAND CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

As of December 31, 2013, the outstanding note receivable from Liberty plus accrued interest was $19.1 million. The note bore
wnterest at the three=month LIBOR, plus 2%.

Prior to the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off, TruePosition was a party to certain tax shanng arrangements with
Liberty (or its former affiliate). Under these tax-sharing arrangements, TruePosition had been obligated to make cash payments
to Liberty (or its former affiliate) in each yvear TruePosition generated positive taxable income, determined as if TruePosition filed
a separate 1ax retwm. The amount of such payment has been equal to the amount of TruePosition's taxable income (as so
determined) multiplied by the highest corporate tax rate in effect for the applicable tax jurisdiction. If on a separate retumn basis,
TruePosition would have a net operating loss or net tax credit for a particular year. and such loss or credit could be utilized on
the actual tax retuns filed by Liberty (or its former affiliate), then TruePosition would be entitled to reduce cwrrent and future
pavments to Liberty (or its former affiliate) by the amount of such tax benefit. TruePosition made payments of $3.2 million in
2014, £13.6 million in 2013 and $10.7 million in 2012 under these tax sharing amangements. As of December 31, 2013,
TrmePosition had a $6.4 million income tax receivable due from Liberty. Prior to the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off,
TmePosition’s income tax receivable from Liberty was transferved to Liberty Breadband and the tax sharing arrangement between
Liberty and TruePosition was extinguished.

(14)  Commitments and Contingencies
Leases
TruePosition leases varnons properties under operating leases expiring at vanous fimes throngh 2018, The aggregate

puninmun annual lease payiments under the noncancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2014 are as follows (amounts in
thousands):

BOLS s F R R R RGIRR ERRREReRE 5 1,763
BOTO oo e e 5P a5 A 0 S0 e W s S e 1.806
I ET o s T W e B A, 0 S R 1.849
L 1 L g oy R gy gy )P gy i) JRpg 27

§ 5445

TreePosition’s principal facility is under lease through December 2017, Total rental expense for the vears ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $3.3 nullion, $3.1 million and $3.3 million. respectively,

Litigation

On July 21. 2011, TruePosition filed an antitrust lawsuit in the U.S, District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania
against LM Ericsson Telephone Company (“Ericsson™), the Third Generation Partnership Project (3GPP) and certain other
defendants for anticompetitive conduct associated with the standard setting processes for LTE wireless data commmumnication
technology as it pertains to location technology. The case has been settled, with a cash payment to TruePosition of approximarely
56 mllion and non=monetary considerations, and was formally disnussed in its entirety on July 30, 2014, Defendants 3GPP and
Ericsson did not contribute to the cash portion of the settlement. With respect to the defendants that contributed to the cash
settlement, such cash was provided with no finding or implication of liabality to avoid the expenditure of itigation costs exceading
the settlement amount, and in consideration for TruePosition's withdrawal of accusations of wrongdeing.

On September 10, 2010, Skyhook Wireless, Inc. filed a patent infringement lawsuit i the U.S. District Court for the
District of Massachusetts against Google, Inc. In March 2014, Skyvhook amended its lawsuit to add additional claims, In total,
Skyhook alleges that Google is infringing on eight Skvhook patents involving location technology and seeks an injunction and/or
award of damages in an amount to be determined at tial. The case had been scheduled to be tred before a jury commencing
March 9. 2015, On March 5, 20135, the District Court issued an order that states that the court was advised by the parties that the
case has been setled and thereby dismissed the action withowt costs and without prejudice 1o the right person, upen good cause
shown within 45 days. to reopen the action if settlement is not conswmmated. In addition. on September 10, 2010, Skyhook filed
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a companion case in State Superior Cowurt in Massachusetts alleging that Google improperly interfered with contracts that
Skyhook entered into with a number of important Android OEM manufacturers. In October 2013, the state court granted summary
Judgment to Google. On November 16, 2014, the Appeals Court of Massachusetts affirmed the Superior Conrt’s disnussal and
the judgment is now final.

General Litigation

In the ordinary course of business, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries are parties to legal proceedings and
claims involving alleged infringement of third-party intellectual property rights, defamation. and other claims, Although it is
reasonably possible that the Company may incur losses upon conclusion of such matters, an estimate of any loss or range of loss
cannot be made. In the opinion of management, it is expected that amounts, if any, which may be required to satisfy such
contingencies will not be matenial in relation to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Indemnification Clajms

In the normal course of business, TruePosition provides indemnification to certain customers against specified claims
that might arise against those customers from the use of TruePosition’s products. To date, TruePosition has not had to reimburse
any of its customers for any losses related to these indemnification provisions, However, six such claims are currently pending
and are described below,. TruePosition is unable to estimate the maximum potential impact of these indenmification provisions
on its future results of operations, although TruePosition's liabilities in certain of those amangements are customarily limited in
varons respects, meluding moneranly.

TruePosition's former customer. T-Mobile, has made two indenmification claims against TruePosition. In September,
2008, T-Mobile requested that TruePosition indenmify it for damages (including defense costs) that it may incur in a patent
infringement action that Emsat Advanced Geolocation, LLC (“Emsat”) filed against T-Mobile. TruePosition is not a party to the
suit. TruePosition has denied that it 1s obligated to indenmify T-Mobile and believes that the equipment that it has supplied to T-
Mobile is not coverad by the patent claims that Emsat is asserting against T-Mobile, T-Mobile has not yet formally pursued its
indemnification claims in a civil court action, but has indicated its intenrion to do so after the infringement action is resolved. In
March 2014, T-Mobile requested that TruePosition indemnify it for damages (including defense costs) that it may incur in a patent
infringement action that Guidance IP LLC (“Guidance”) filed against T-Mobile. TmuePosition is not a party to the suit.
TrmePosition has indicated a willingness to participate in the defense of the action, but has not yet received a response from T-
Maobile.

TruePosition’s customer, AT&T. has made four indemmnification claims agamst TruePosition, In October 2008, AT&T
requested TruePosition to indemmnify it for damages (including defense costs) that it may incur relating to the Emsat litigation
described in the preceding paragraph (to which AT&T is a party), In June 2009, AT&T requested TruePosition to indemmify it for
damages (including defense costs) that it may incur relating to a lawsuit filed against ATET by Tendler Cellular of Texas, LLC
(“Tendler™) (to which the Company is not a party). This action relates to TruePosition's subsidiary, Useful Networks, Inc.. whose
operations were discontinued in 2000, In June 2011, AT&T requested TruePosition to indenunfy it for damages (including defense
costs) that it may inecur relating to a lawsuit filed against AT&T by Tracbeam, LLC (to which Company is not a party). In April
2014, AT&T requested TruePosition to indemnify it for damages (including defense costs) that it may incur relating to a lawsnit
filed against AT&T by Guidance (to which Company is not a party), TruePosition has denied that it is obligated to indemnify
ATE&T with respect to the Emsat, Tendler and Guidance cases, AT&T has not yet formally pursued its indemmnification claims in
a civil court action and it is unclear at this time whetler or not it will do so, With respect to Tracbeam, AT&T has determined that
TruePosition's total allocated contmibution 15 5132 thousand and has mvoiced TruePosion accordingly. TruePosition has
informed AT&T that TruePosition believes that the allocation method employed by AT&T 1s flawed and that the actual amotnt
owed is less than $132 thousand.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Liberty Broadband did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have. or are reasonably likely to have, a current
or future effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

(15) Segment Information

Liberty Broadband identifies its reportable segments as (A) those consolidated companies that represent 10% or more
of its consolidated annual revenue, annual Adjusted OIBDA or total assets and (B) those equity method affiliates whose share of
earnings or losses represent 10% or more of Liberty Broadband’s annual pre-fax eamings (losses),

Liberty Broadband evaluates performance and makes decisions about allocating resources to its operating segments
based on financial measures such as revenue, Adjusted OIBDA. In addition, Liberty Broadband reviews nonfinancial measures
such as subseriber growth.

Liberty Broadband defines Adjusted OIBDA as revenue less cost of sales, operating expenses, and selling, general and
adnunistrative expenses (excluding stock-based compensation). Liberty Broadband believes this measure is an important
mdicator of the operational strength and performance of its businesses, including each business’s ability to service debt and fund
capital expenditures. In addition, this measure allows management to view operating results and perform analytical compatisons
and benchmarking between businesses and identify strategies to improve performance, This measure of performance excludes
depreciation and amortization. stock based compensation, separately reported litigation sertlements and restrucruring and
impairment charges that are included in the measurement of operating income pursuant to GAAP. Accordingly, Adjusted OIBDA
should be considered in addition to, but not as a substitute for, operating income, net eamings, cash flow provided by operating
activities and other measures of financial performance prepared in accordance with GAAP. Liberty Broadband generally accounts
for intersegment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third parties, that is, at curent prices.

For the vear ended December 31, 2014, Libenty Broadband has identified the following consolidared company and equity
method investment as its reportable segments:

*  TruePosition—a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company that develops and markets technology for locating
wireless phones and other wireless devices on a cellular network, enabling wireless carriers and government
agencies to provide public safery E-9-1-1 services domestically and services in support of national security and law
enforcement worldwide. In addition. through its recent acquisition Skyhook, operates a global location nerwork
providing hybrid wireless positioning technology and contextual location intelligence solutions worldwide,

e Charter—an equity method mvestment that 15 one of the largest providers of cable services in the United States,
offering a vanety of entertainment, information and communications solutions to residential and commercial
customers.

Liberty Broadband’s operating segments are strategic business units that offer different products and services, They are
managed separately because each segment requires different technologies, distribution channels and marketing strategies. The
accounting policies of the segments that are also consolidated companies are the same as those descnibed in the Company’s
sunmary of significant accounting policies in the Company’s annual financial statements, For periods in which Liberty
Broadband owned Charter shares and warrants, we have included amounts attributable to Charter i the tables below. Although
Liberty Broadband owns less than 100% of the outstanding shares of Charter, 100% of the Charter amounts are included in the
schedule below and subsequently eliminated in order to reconcile the account totals to the Liberty Broadband consolidated
financial statements.
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Years ended December 31,
2014 2013 012
Adjusted Adjusted Adjasted
Revenue CIBDA Revenue CIBDA Revenue OIBDA
amounts in thousands
5 69,045 (2.152) 77,363 5.290 83,098 11,335
5,108,000 3128000 8.155.000 2811000 — —
— (1.559) — — — —
9,177,045 3,124,289 £,232.363 2,816,290 83.098 11,335
(9.108.000) (3.128.000) (8.155.000) (2.811.000) — —_
69,045 (3.711) 77,363 5,290 83,098 11,335

The amounts herein represent Charter’s results for the full vear ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, However, the

portion of Charter’s share of earnings (losses) included in the consolidated financial statements of Liberty Broadband
only includes Charter’s results from the time of acquisition (May 2013) through December 31, 2014,

Other Information

December 21, 2014 December 31, 2013
Total Investments Capital Tatal Tavestments Capital
assels in affiliates expenditures asseli in affiliates expenditures
amounts in thoeusands
TruePosition .. ... ...... 3 87.393 — 1,398 77.166 — L1127
Charter, ... .coviivainsan 24,550,000 —_ 2,221,000 17,295,000 —_ 1.825,000
Corporate and other. .. .... 1916539 2,498,804 —_ 2832213 2.402.024 —
27.553932 2,498,804 2.222.398 20,204,379 2.402.024 1,526,127
Eliminate equity method
affilsate: o ek (24,550,000) —_ (2.221.000) (17.295.000) — (1.825.000)
Consolidated Liberty
Broadband. . _......... § 3003932 24985804 1,398 2.909.379 2,402,024 1,127
Revenue by Geographic Area
Years ended December 31,
2014 1013 2012
amounis i thousands
Iaited Sy v S S R B R A 566,045 68,179 80802
DT SO - 5 S A R R e 3,000 9,184 2,296
569045 77363 83.098

December 31

014 2013
amaunts in thowsands

................................... $ 3570 4,611
................................... 20 49
$ 3.590 4,660
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The following table provides a reconciliation of segment Adjusted OIBDA to eamings (loss) from continuing

operations before income faxes:

Years ended December 31,
1014 2013 012
amounts in thousands
Consolidated segment Adjusted OIBDA. . ............. N SRR 53T 5,290 11,335
Stock-based COmMPEnSAton ..ot (999) (996) 2383
Depreciation and amortization _ .. ..... ... ... (9.043) (4,382) {5.839)
Gamn on legal settlement . ... 6,000 — —
Impairment of long-lived assets .. ..... s (35.221) — —
Interest expense (1.138) —_ —_
Dividend and i :J:l.tmst income . 5.426 6.878 5415
Share of eamings (loss) nfaﬂillaies r.let (127.573) (76.090) —_
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on financial instnuments, net. .. ....... 51,189 97,860 57,582
Gain (loss) on dilution of investment inaffiliate. ... ............c.oovnu (87.158) (92,933) —
- o 1 e e L P A R e P R e (63) {53) (117)
Eamings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes .. ......... % (202.291) (64.426) 70,759
(16} Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)
1" ™ : i 4
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
amounts in thowsands
2014:
20 LT T A PR A e K e S G e F e S PP i o £ R LR o TP Ve e e § 16921 17,146 17445 17,533
Operating income (loss) $ (4.536) (8.398) 6364  (36.404)
Net eamings (loss) attributable to Liberty Broadband Corporation Series A,
Series B and Series Cstockholders . .. oooviieiiinniiiiiiiein S (57.71%) 1904 (31.990)  (46.804)
Basic eamings (loss) attributable to Liberty Broadband Corporation
Senes A, Series B and Senies C stockholders per common share ... ... .. 5 (0.65) 0.02 (0.36) (0.53)
Diluted eamings (loss) attributable to Liberty Broadband Corporation
Series A_ Series B and Senes C stockholders per common share .. ....... 5 (0.65) 0.02 (0.36) (0.53)
1 = 3 4
maﬂ" w!!‘lﬂ‘ Qlarier gnarnr
amonnts in thaws anids
2013:
Revenue, , ; e e R R ey 0] 18,821 17,627 16,914
Dpﬂ'almg imcome (!osa) ........................................... $ 2535 (1L.919%) (2.480) 1.776
Net eamnings (foss) attributable to Liberty Broadband Corpwnnon Sertes A,
Senes B and Senes Cstockholders . .. ... . . i i et 5 11,116 8,025 (52.020) (8,849)
Basic eamings (loss) attributable to Liberty Broadband Corporation Series A,
Series B and Series C stockholders per commen share ... .......oco00 5 013 0.09 (0.59) (0.10)
Diluted eamings (loss) attributable to Liberty Broadband Corporation
Series A. Series B and Series C stockholders per common share .. ........ & 0.3 0.09 (0.59) (0.10)



The Proxy Statement has been intentionally omitted from this filing and has been separately filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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